MODELING AND ANALYSIS OF IMPACTS OF RIGHT-TURN LANE

LENGTHS

A Thesis Submitted to the Graduate Faculty of the North Dakota State University of Agriculture and Applied Science

Ву

Pavan Kumar Chevuri

In Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree of MASTER OF SCIENCE

> Major Department: Civil Engineering

> > August 2011

Fargo, North Dakota

Title

Modeling and Analysis of Effects of Right Turn Lane Lengths

By

Pavan K. Chevuri

The Supervisory Committee certifies that this *disquisition* complies with North Dakota State University's regulations and meets the accepted standards for the degree of

MASTER OF SCIENCE



ABSTRACT

Chevuri, Pavan Kumar, M.S., Department of Civil Engineering, College of Engineering and Architecture, North Dakota State University, August 2011. Modeling and Analysis of Impacts of Right-Turn Lane Lengths. Major Professor: Dr. Amiy Varma.

Turn lanes have been studied for several decades, with focus being on left-turn lanes and for urban areas. The need for right-turn lanes has been studied using the impact of such turn lanes on both safety and operational efficiency. However, the impacts of different right-turn lane lengths have not been studied well. The determinations of rightturn lane lengths have been based primarily on the deceleration of the right-turning vehicles, which happens to be one of the many factors that should influence such decisions. In this study the impacts of the right-turn lanes on two-lane roads with no controls on major roads have been modeled and analyzed. In particular, the impacts on the space mean speed and the delays have been studied using both the analysis of field data from several intersections around Minnesota and the analysis of the results from simulation models developed using CORridor SIMulation (CORSIM[®]).

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank my parents and friends for supporting me during my stay at North Dakota State University (NDSU). I would like to specially thank my advisor, Dr. Amiy Varma, for helping me throughout my education at NDSU and guiding me with valuable advice and moral support during my marriage crisis. I would like to sincerely thank my committee members, Dr. Donald Andersen, Dr. Rhonda Magel, and Dr. Denver Tolliver, for agreeing to serve on my committee, for reviewing my thesis in very short time and providing feedback, and especially for finding time from their busy summer schedule to accommodate my thesis defense.

I am very appreciative of Minnesota Department of Transportation (Mn/DOT) for providing valuable data, equipment, and funding for the study. I would like to thank Curt Doetkott from the NDSU Statistical Consulting Service for his help in this study. In addition, I like to thank my colleagues Gom Ale, Sunil Gyawali, and Scott Hagel for their valuable help in field data collection. Finally, I would like to thank the Department of Civil Engineering for providing resources and creating a caring and stable environment for students.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABST	RACT	iii
ACKN	OWLEDGEMENTS	iv
LIST (OF TABLES v	iii
LIST (OF FIGURES	ix
LIST (OF APPENDIX FIGURES	xi
СНАР	TER I. INTRODUCTION	.1
1.1.	Background and Motivation	.1
1.2.	Problem Statement	2
1.3.	Objectives	.3
1.4.	Scope	3
1.5.	Organization of Thesis	4
CHAP	TER 2. REVIEW OF RESEARCH AND PRACTICE RELATED TO RIGHT- FURN LANES	5
2.1.	Right-Turn Movement Contexts and Treatments	5
2.2.	Operational Impacts of Right-Turn Movements	6
2.3.	Right-Turn Lane Related Operational Studies	.9
2.4.	Warrants and Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes	15
2.5.	Summary	19
СНАР	TER 3. MODELING AND ANALYSIS USING FIELD DATA	20
3.1.	Methodology	20
3.2.	Data Collection	22
3.3.	Data Reductions	28
3.4.	Models	30
	3.4.1. Model 1: Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model	31
	3.4.2. Model 2: Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model	32

	3.4.3.	Model 3: Field Data Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model	33
3.5.	Valida	ation of Models	35
3.6.	Discus	ssion of Results	366
3.7.	Summ	ary	37
CHAP	TER 4.	MODELING AND ANALYSIS USING SIMULATION	38
4.1.	Overa	Il Methodology	38
4.2.	Simul	ation Model Development	39
	4.2.1.	Base and Preliminary Models	40
	4.2.2.	Calibration	41
	4.2.3.	Validation	44
	4.2.4.	Modeled Scenarios	45
	4.2.5.	Speed Results from Simulation	47
	4.2.6.	Delay Results from Simulations	54
4.3.	Develo	opment of Statistical Model Using Data from Simulation	57
	4.3.1.	Model 4: Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model	58
	4.3.2.	Model 5: Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model	59
	4.3.3.	Model 6: Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model	61
	4.3.4.	Validation of Statistical Models Based on Simulation Data	62
	4.3.5.	Discussion of Results	63
4.4.	Summ	ary	64
CHAP	TER 5.	CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS	65
5.1.	Conclu	usions	65
	5.1.1.	Issues Related to Right-Turn Lanes	65
	5.1.2.	Field Data Collection and Analysis	66
	5.1.3.	Use of Simulation in Understanding Impacts	67
5.2.	Recon	mendations	68

REFERENCES	.69
APPENDIX A. SAMPLE CORSIM INPUT	.74
APPENDIX B. SAMPLE CORSIM OUTPUT	.75
APPENDIX C. SIMULATION RESULTS	.81
APPENDIX D. MINITAB OUTPUTS	.90

LIST OF TABLES

Table	<u>Page</u>
3.1. Details of Data Collection Locations	25
3.2. Details of Right Turn Treatments at Data Collection Locations.	25
3.3. Time for Data Collection	26
3.4. Specifications of Time-Gap and Spot-Speed Data Collection Points	28
3.5. Parameter Estimates of Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model.	31
3.6. Parameter Estimates of Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model	
3.7. Parameter Estimates of Field Data Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model	34
3.8. Validation of Field Data Based Statistical Models	
4.1. Calibration Results.	44
4.2. Validation Results	44
4.3. List of Independent Variables and their Levels	46
4.4. Parameter Estimates of Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model	58
4.5. Parameter Estimates of Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model	60
4.6. Parameter Estimates of Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model	61
4.7. Validation of Simulation Data Based Models	62

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure Page
2.1. Different Right-Turn Contexts and Treatments
2.2. Impact on Through Vehicles due to Right-Turning Vehicles
3.1. Data Collection Locations
3.2. Data Collection for Shared/Radius Right Turn Treatments
3.3. Data Collection for Exclusive Right Turn Treatments27
3.4. Residual Plots for Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model
3.5. Residual Plots for Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model
3.6. Residual Plots for Field Data Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model35
4.1. Link-Node Diagram in CORSIM [®] for 4-Legged Intersections
4.2. Locations used for Calibration
4.3. Driver Type Distribution for Shared Treatment
4.4. Driver Type Distribution for Exclusive Treatment
4.5. Network for Simulating Modeling Scenarios for Shared Cases
4.6. Network for Simulating Modeling Scenarios for Exclusive Cases
4.7. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Shared Treatment
4.8. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 150 feet)
4.9. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 480 feet)
4.10. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 600 feet)
4.11. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Shared Treatment
4.12. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 150 feet)50

4.13.	Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 480 feet)50
4.14.	Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 600 feet)51
4.15.	Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 100 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
4.16.	Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 400 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
4.17.	Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 100 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
4.18.	Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 400 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
4.19.	Space Mean Speed of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 30 mph Posted Speed
4.20.	Space Mean Speed of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 55 mph Posted Speed
4.21.	Total Delay (in Vehicle-Minutes) of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 30 mph Posted Speed
4.22.	Total Delay (in Vehicle-Minutes) of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 55 mph Posted Speed
4.23.	Average Delay (in Seconds/Vehicle) of Through Vehicle on Approach Link for 30 mph Posted Speed
4.24.	Average Delay (in Seconds/Vehicle) of Through Vehicle on Approach Link for 55 mph Posted Speed
4.25.	Residual Plots for Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model
4.26.	Residual Plots for Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model60
4.27.	Residual Plots for Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model

LIST OF APPENDIX FIGURES

<u>Page</u>
C.1. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 300 feet)
C.2. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 300 feet)
C.3. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Shared Treatment
2.4. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 150 feet)
 Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 300 feet)
C.6. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 480 feet)
2.7. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 600 feet)
2.8. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 200 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
C.9. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 300 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
2.10. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 200 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
2.11. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 300 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
2.12. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 100 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
C.13. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 200 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
2.14. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 300 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths
2.15. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 400 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths

C.16. Total Delay (in Vehicle Minutes) of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 45	5
mph Posted Speed.	88
C.17. Average Delay (in Seconds/Vehicle) of Through Vehicle on Approach Link for	45
mph Posted Speed.	89

CHAPTER 1. INTRODUCTION

1.1. Background and Motivation

The use of turn lanes has become an important part of highway access management in many communities today. Even though the major emphasis has been on left-turn lanes. there are many important issues and design considerations that relate to right-turn movements and right-turn lanes at intersections and driveways. Much of the focus regarding turn lanes has been in urban areas, but now many turn lane related issues, particularly those related to right-turn lanes, have emerged as an important consideration in rural areas along major transportation corridors. The requirement for right-turn lanes has at times become a debatable issue between transportation professionals at Department of Transportation (DOT) and the developers. Often times, the bases for requiring the developers to build right-turn lanes have been challenged. The past studies on right-turn lanes have focused on analyzing whether there should be right-turn lane or not, and have led to development of criteria or warrants in form of volume thresholds for requiring rightturn lanes. Different states have used different volume thresholds and even criteria for establishing the need for right-turn lanes. There are still outstanding questions related to right-turn lane design as to how long taper should be and how long full width lane should be under different circumstances, which have not been adequately studied. A better understanding of these issues is needed. Resolution of such concerns will address important gap in knowledge and practice, resolve any conflicts between transportation professionals and developers when deciding regarding having a right-turn lane, and lead to improved practice of designing and implementing right-turn lanes.

1.2. Problem Statement

The use of right turn lanes follows the warrants needed for it. Typically, right turn movements are addressed at intersections and driveways in form of radius treatment, taper, or taper with full width lanes of different lengths. Offset right-turn lanes have also recently been used. The bases for deciding on the need for right-turn lanes are related to business access, cost, safety, and operational efficiency. There have been studies in past to study the need for right-turn lane based on geometric context, accident history, approach traffic volume, percentage of right-turning vehicles in approach traffic volume, speed, and type of right-turn treatment at the intersection or driveway. Such studies have tried to demonstrate the difference between the shared right-turn movement and the right-turn movements using exclusive turn lanes in terms of safety and operational impacts. There are still outstanding questions regarding the appropriateness of right-turn lane lengths. Typically, the lengths of the taper and full width turn lane have been based on the speeds on the intersection approaches, controls at the intersections, decelerating characteristics of right-turning vehicles, and speed at which right-turn movement takes place. There is more to be done to develop a fuller understanding of the effectiveness of differing lengths for broad range of conditions in terms of meeting safety and operational efficiency objectives. Use and analysis of field data for developing this understanding is very important, but can also be challenging and limiting. Some of such limitations can be handled effectively using simulation models in conjunction with the field data. Simulation model allows analysis of broad range of conditions, which might be difficult to do with analysis of field data alone. Nonetheless, field data are very useful in calibrating and validating simulation models,

which in turn can provide credible analyses and results from simulation models for advancing knowledge and improving practice.

1.3. Objectives

The objectives of this research were two-fold:

- To collect and analyze field data related to right-turn lanes and their lengths, and develop statistical models for understanding operational impacts in form of speeds and delays of following through vehicles; and
- To develop simulation model to better understand the impacts of right-turn lanes of different lengths for variety of contexts on traffic operations in terms of delays and speeds of the following through vehicles.

1.4. Scope

The scope of the research was confined to use of right turn-lanes on two-lane roads with no control on major roads. The research and analyses were based on data collected at several intersections around the state of Minnesota. The research conducted here was focused on the operational impacts of different right turn treatments (shared as well as exclusive right-turn lanes of different lengths). The offset right-turn lanes were not studied. In particular, space mean speed and total delays to the following through vehicles were of interest. Both the data from field and simulation model were analyzed. The simulation was done using the simulation model developed by Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) called CORridor SIMulation (CORSIM[®]). The simulation model was calibrated and validated using field data. The analyses were conducted over 15-minute periods for calibration, validation, as well as different modeled scenarios.

1.5. Organization of Thesis

This thesis is organized into five chapters and includes a list of references and appendices. Chapter 2 provides review and synthesis of issues and the state-of-the-practice related to right-turn lanes, particularly related to the operational impacts and the lengths of right turn lanes. Chapter 3 describes the analysis of right-turn lanes and their lengths using field data. Chapter 4 provides discussion of the simulation model developed and the analyses using the results from the simulation models and related statistical models. Chapter 5 provides the key conclusions and recommendations resulting from this research.

CHAPTER 2. REVIEW OF RESEARCH AND PRACTICE RELATED TO RIGHT-TURN LANES

This chapter provides review and synthesis of issues, research, and state-of-practice related to use of right-turn lanes. First, treatments for right-turn movements are identified. Next, operational impacts are identified and discussed. Then, right-turn lane related operational studies are reviewed. Finally, warrants and guidelines related to right-turn lanes are synthesized.

2.1. Right-Turn Movement Contexts and Treatments

There are varying treatments at intersections and driveways to deal with right-turn movements, which are applied in different contexts and conditions. The treatments that are of focus in this research are the ones dealing with shared lanes (see (a), (b), and (c) in Figure 2.1) and exclusive lanes (see (d) and (e) in Figure 2.1).



Figure 2.1. Different Right-Turn Contexts and Treatments. Source: (Ale 2007)

Usually for low-volume and low-speed contexts just radius treatments are necessary. As traffic volume and speed increases, and the right turning vehicles increase, the need for turn lane arises. A large right turning vehicle such as a truck, while moving in the exclusive lane, can potentially obstruct the line of sight of the vehicle yielding at the minor cross road, which can lead to unsafe conditions and accidents. To address this problem, a new configuration of exclusive treatment called offset right turn treatment (see (f) in Figure 2.1) has been used. As the full-width lane is offset further from the traveled lane, the configuration allows unobstructed line of sight to yielding vehicle at the cross road.

2.2. Operational Impacts of Right-Turn Movements

Right turning movements take place at a lower speed. Thus, the right turning vehicles have to decelerate from the mainline speed to a speed considered safe for turning. The speed of the right turning vehicles is influenced by the curb radii and other conditions. The through vehicle following the right-turning vehicle has to slow down to maintain a safe distance from the leading right turning vehicle. Sometimes this impact can be translated to other through vehicles that follow the through vehicle following the right turning vehicle. Sometimes more than one vehicle may be turning right, which can extend the impact more.

This slowing down can result in safety and delay problems. There is deceleration of right turning vehicle to achieve turning speed. The following through vehicles decelerate to react to the slowing of the right-turning vehicles. There is formation of a speed-change cycle (see Figure 2.2, where V_i and a_i represent speeds and decelerations of following through vehicles). In addition, conflicts are generated due to this speed-change cycle.



Figure 2.2. Impact on Through Vehicles due to Right-Turning Vehicles.

Having a right-turn lane mitigates some of these effects as the right turning vehicle moves out of the through traffic stream quicker and at a higher speed. This, in turn, slows following through vehicles less and therefore delay experienced is less. The savings from reduced delay and other operational costs and enhanced safety can be balanced against the cost of incorporating turn lane in the project improvement. This balance can also be influenced by approach volume and number of right-turning vehicles in approach volume. Among the operational impacts are primarily the impacts on speed, the resulting delay to following through vehicles, and the increased cost from additional consumption of fuel. In this thesis the focus has been on delay and speed. A better understanding of the impacts on these two aspects can then also help in better estimating the energy and cost impacts.

Delay can be defined as the difference between the ideal travel time and the travel time under constraining conditions imposed by the slowing of the right turning vehicles. Several factors can affect the magnitude of the delay. Among these factors are posted speed limit, magnitude and variability in traffic demand, likelihood of right-turning traffic, geometric context at the location of interest, nature of control, nature of traffic on cross road, type of right-turn treatment, length of right turn lane, driver behavior and vehicle characteristics in through and turning traffic, and the presence of accesses in the vicinity. Driver and vehicle characteristics affect the car following behavior, which in turn affect the deceleration and acceleration of the vehicle and how close a vehicle follows the leading right turning vehicle. Intuitively, it can be concluded that higher traffic demand and especially higher right-turning traffic will cause more delays and will also increase likelihood of accidents, especially rear-end accidents.

Type of environment also tends to influence the operational impacts. The focus in this research is to assess the effectiveness of the right-turn lanes in both high- and lowspeed environment on two-lane road where the major road had no controls. The low speed environment is typically found in urban environment whereas the high-speed is more a characteristic of rural environment. The rural areas are typically characterized by relatively much lower volume and high speed throughout the day. There are no discernible peak and off-peak periods. The headways between vehicles arriving at a point along a major road are random and the numbers of right-turning vehicles are very low. Consequently, the issue is most commonly a problem of speed differential between a right-turning vehicle and following through traffic and how it delays the through traffic in general. The urban areas have discernible peak periods, higher volume, lower speed, and vehicle arrivals are more frequent and even come in platoons when there is upstream signal. Due to increased development there are more movements, including turning movements. The lack of space and use of additional control may dictate the choice of length based on taper and storage

and the deceleration is left on through lane. As a result, more delays can be experienced. However, speeds tend to be low so differential speed may be less. But, traffic levels are higher leading to accumulation of delays by more through vehicles being impacted by more right-turning traffic. This certainly poses challenges for adequately understanding the operational impacts under different conditions.

Type of right turn treatment also affects the operation and safety in certain ways. All reasonable combinations of curb return radii and throat width produce high speed differentials. Accident potential increases exponentially as speed differential increases. Thus, turn lanes are needed if acceptable (safe) speed differentials are to be achieved on major urban and rural streets. The use of long curb radii does not decrease the speed differential. However, it reduces the dispersion of the vehicle trajectories which drivers steer when entering an intersection or a driveway and potentially facilitates an easier entry maneuver. The use of a taper on the upstream side of the driveway or intersection does not significantly influence the speed of the vehicle making the driveway or intersection maneuver. However, the taper results in a reduction in exposure time (the time which the turning vehicle is blocking the through traffic lane). Lack of turn lane can increase delay and potential for accident. However, this could be insensitive up to a certain volume level or threshold.

2.3. Right-Turn Lane Related Operational Studies

Harmelink (1967) did a pioneering Canadian study and utilized a probabilistic model along with some field studies to establish left turn lane warrants for two-lane and four-lane highways at unsignalized T- intersections. Alexander (1970) conducted study in Indiana at ten different field sites, three having right-turn lanes and seven having no rightturn lanes. Primary data collected at these sites were approach volume, number of rightturns in approach volume, and average speed of through vehicles that were not delayed. The study applied regression approach to develop a delay (seconds/vehicle) equation using independent variables such as approach volume, number of right-turns in approach volume, and average speed of through vehicles that were not delayed. In addition, the study developed economic warrant for right-turn deceleration lane based on the tradeoff of savings in delay to through vehicles with the cost of construction, operation, and maintenance of turn-lanes.

Stover, Adkins, and Goodknight (1970) collected data on deceleration rate and right-turn speed using time-lapse photography at one field location. These data were used to calibrate a simulation model, which was used to compute the delay due to right-turning vehicles. The study found that the delay by right-turning vehicles increases exponentially as the volume in the driveway increases and the difference in speed in through traffic and driveway entrance increases.

Cottrell (1981) compiled existing research in 1981 and derived graphs, which delineated warranting volume thresholds at unsignalized intersections on both two- and four-lane rural roadways for multiple treatments: full turning lanes, a taper, and a radius. The volume thresholds were established based on a synthesis of relationships among the field data using regression approach, standards employed by many other states, and judgment. The variables considered include approach volume, posted roadway speed limit, and right-turn volume. This study has been the basis for guidelines used by many DOTs for determining the need of exclusive right-turn lanes or taper right-turn treatments.

Mounce (1983) used simplistic model analysis to formulate several probability statements to estimate the number of mainline through vehicles affected by right-turn movements at driveways. The study developed estimates for excess fuel consumption as function of driveway entrance speed. The study found that right-turn lane at driveway entrance could save over 30,000 gallons of fuel annually when the product of through lane hourly volume and right-turn lane hourly volume exceed 500,000.

McCoy et al. (1984) developed exponential equation to express delay savings in seconds per vehicle for left- turn lanes as a function of opposing volume, approach volume, and free-flow approach speed. This study used micro simulation software, Network Simulation (NETSIM), for the computation of operational effects, such as delay, fuel consumption, and stops. Due to errors in a series of NETSIM runs used for the simulation of right-turn lanes, the study adopted the delay savings equation developed for left-turn lanes for the right-turn lanes as well. For the computation of delay savings due to rightturn lanes, the same equation was used by replacing left-turn percentages with right-turn percentages and opposing volume set to zero. The warrants for turn lanes for rural two-lane highways on uncontrolled approaches in Nebraska were established by studying the operational effects of delay, fuel consumption, and stops.

Neuman (1985) reported the work carried out for a comprehensive study of intersection channelization, as a part of National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP) 279 study. One of the key assertions made in this report was that the safety impacts of right-turn movements are less critical than those of left-turn movements. This assertion was made based on the premise that right turns involve fewer and less severe conflicts, and tend to have lesser influence on the through traffic. However, the study

reported that there are conditions for which added costs of providing exclusive right-turn lanes are fully justified by the improvements to traffic flow. The report contains the guidelines for determining the need for right-turn lanes, which were essentially adapted from Cottrell (1981).

McCoy et al. (1993) successfully simulated the uncontrolled approach with "shared" and "exclusive right-turn lane" using NETSIM software and established the delay equation for an uncontrolled approach for cases with and without a right-turn lane for twolane and four-lane roads. It was found that the delay to through vehicles due to rightturning vehicles was affected significantly by the approach speed of the roadway, volumes at the approach, volumes of right-turning vehicles, the interactive term expressed as the product of volumes of right-turning vehicles, and the presence/absence of right-turn lane. The study developed warrant guidelines for right-turn lanes for urban two- and four-lane highways in Nebraska through cost-benefit analysis that took into account both operational and safety benefits the right-turn lanes were determined to provide to road users. The study, however, noted that the safety effects of right-turn lanes were not adequately quantified in the past mainly due to the limitations of available crash data. The safety effectiveness of right-turn lanes was, therefore, determined based on a relationship previously established between speed differentials and crashes, in which the underlying message is that the chance of being involved in a crash increases as the speed of a vehicle deviates from the average speed of traffic (Solomon 1964). The speed differentials between right-turning vehicles and through vehicles at intersection approaches without a right-turn lane were first estimated, which were then used to determine the expected number of rearend crashes at such approaches.

Stover (1996b) developed a discussion paper on right-turn lanes for the Oregon Department of Transportation. Stover (1996b) also discussed the warrants in use in the Colorado Department of Transportation. Hasan and Stokes (1996) developed an equation for delay to through vehicles due to the effect of right-turning vehicles during their work for the development of guidelines for right-turn treatments, at unsignalized intersections and driveways, on the Kansas State highway system. According to the equation developed in this study, delay (seconds per right-turning vehicle) was a function of roadway speed and Directional Design Hour Volume (DDHV). Hasan and Stokes (1996) adapted these probability statements developed by Mounce (1983) to develop analytical models to predict the number of through vehicles that are affected by right turns (same as right-turn, same-direction conflicts, including the associated secondary conflicts) at radius right-turn treatments at approaches to unsignalized intersections and driveways on both two- and four-lane roadways. Hasan and Stokes (1996) also followed the cost-benefit approach to develop the volume warrants for right-turn treatments at the approaches to unsignalized intersections and driveways on rural two- and four-lane highways in Kansas. The safety benefits of providing right-turn lanes were quantified by adopting the same methodology formulated by McCoy et al. (1993).

McCoy and Bonneson (1996) developed volume warrants for free right-turn lanes at approaches to unsignalized intersections on rural two-lane highways based on the estimated operational cost savings achievable by providing free right-turn lanes. The study found that the safety effects of free right-turn lanes were not significant, and, therefore, the safety benefits were not incorporated in the cost-benefit analysis performed to determine the volume thresholds for free right-turn lanes.

Bonneson (1998) developed a deterministic/analytical model to predict the delay due to right-turning vehicles from the outside of a through lane of Major Street to through vehicles. To verify the developed model, the study compared computed delay with the delay obtained from the model developed by other researchers in the past using NETS1M software. This study illustrated that delay increases with the increasing flow rate in the outside through traffic lane, increasing major-street running speed, an increase in the portion of right-turns, or a decrease in the right-turn speed.

Wolfe and Lane (2000) collected field data from 15 intersections to study geometric delays due to the right-turning vehicles at the intersection, taking into account the radius of curvature of turns. The study concluded that with the decrease of radius curvature of travel way, the delay by right-turning vehicles to the through vehicles increases. The study put forward an analytical equation of the total time impacted by right- turning vehicles, taking into consideration deceleration time, clearance time, acceleration time of the through vehicle, the headway between adjacent vehicles, and a minimum headway of 1.9 seconds.

Harwood et al. (2002) provided a detailed safety effectiveness of left and right-turn lanes; however, the analysis for right-turn lanes is not as detailed as for left-turn lanes. Hadi and Thakkar (2003) used speed differentials as surrogate safety measures to evaluate the need for right-turn turn lanes at unsignalized intersections based on the data obtained from simulations as well as the field data collected from two locations in Florida. Wolfe and Piro (2003) developed a model for the delay of through vehicles by right-turning vehicles based on differences in the through and right -turning vehicles' speed, the total volume, and the right lane volume. The study was based on data collected from 12 intersections.

From a safety perspective, the operational impacts on through traffic caused by vehicles slowing down to turn may be translated into potential crashes related to speed differential. Speed differential related crashes are typically rear-end crashes. Previous studies did not specifically look at highways with traffic volumes below 4000 Average Annual Average Daily Traffic (AADT). It is commonly perceived that at volumes below 4000 AADT, the impact of right-turning traffic does not impact through traffic.

2.4. Warrants and Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes

As mentioned earlier, right-turn lanes are provided at approaches of roadway intersections to facilitate the right-turn movements and to improve the traffic safety as well as the operational efficiency for the prevailing or anticipated road and traffic conditions. American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO) has produced numerous guidelines for the geometric design of roads, streets, intersections, and interchanges, and addressed the need for auxiliary lanes as well. AASHTO (2004) presents a summary table of points on Harmelink (1967)'s graphed curves for two-lane highways. Interpretation of the table is difficult and many states have adopted forms of the graphs for two-lanes and remain consistent with AASHTO by excluding Harmelink (1967)'s fourlane highway curves.

AASHTO (2004) indicates that the length of a left- or right-turn lane is the sum of the following three components: (a) deceleration distance, (b) queue storage length, and (c) taper. Ideally, all deceleration is expected to occur after turning vehicle has cleared the through traffic lane. However, whether this happens in actuality is dependent of different geometric and operational conditions.

Common practice is to accept some deceleration in the through traffic lane. A reduction of more than 15 km/h (10 mph) on major roadways could be a concern. However, more deceleration while the turning vehicle still occupies part of the through lane may be acceptable on minor roadways or very low volume roads. In this research focus was on the approaches on major road which had no controls. Where access points are closely spaced, as in urban environments, the length of a turn lane may be limited to storage plus taper, which will require all or at least much of the deceleration to occur on the through traffic lane. Provision for deceleration clear of the through-traffic lanes is a desirable objective on arterial roads and streets and should be incorporated into design whenever feasible. The total length required is that needed for a safe and comfortable stop from the design speed of the highway. Minimum deceleration lengths for auxiliary lanes on grades of 2 percent or less, with an accompanying stop condition, for design speeds of 30, 40, and 50 mph are 235, 315, and 435 feet, respectively (AASHTO 2004). These lengths exclude the length of taper, which should be typically approximately 8 to 15 ft longitudinally to one foot transversely. The lengths given in AASHTO are accepted as a desirable goal and are expected to be provided where practical and feasible. However, the appropriateness of this from operational efficiency standpoint will be dependent on the type of geometric and operational conditions that exist. It was intended to study this aspect in greater detail using field data as well as data from simulation model by understanding how the right turning vehicles affect the through vehicles under different conditions.

Turning lanes at intersections tend to reduce accidents (crashes). Typically, state transportation departments review crash rates in determining the need for turn lanes and most review roadway volumes. States generally refer to American Association of State

Highway Transportation Officials (AASHTO) for guidance on highway design; however, most states have adopted volume warrants or guidelines at unsignalized intersections that supplement the AASHTO guidance, which is partial for left turn lanes and inadequate and even absent for right turn lanes. There appears to be greatest need for unsignalized intersections and driveways.

A review of several state DOT turn lane policies provided interesting insights. Ohio Department of Transportation (DOT) policies recognize that exclusive right-turn lanes are less critical in terms of safety than left turn lanes, right turn lanes can significantly improve the level of service of signalized intersections, and that right-turn lane can also provide a means of safe deceleration for right-turning traffic on high-speed facilities and separate right-turning traffic at stop-controlled intersections. As a general suggestion, Ohio DOT considers an exclusive right turn lane when the right turn volumes exceed 300 vehicles per hour (vph). It must be noted that a right-turn volume of 300 vph is extremely high.

In Iowa right turn lanes may be warranted if right turning traffic flow rate is greater than 30 vph and the approach volume is greater than 400 vph (IADOT 1995). Connecticut and Montana use the right-turn graph presented in Neuman (1985). The Oregon DOT uses a graph based on a series of discussion papers (Stover 1996a, 1996b). The volume criteria for a right turn lane compare the approaching design hourly volume in the outside lane with the right-turn design hourly volume. The right-turn lane volume warrants are based on Neumann (1985). Alaska requires right turn lane when the right-turn volume exceeds 25 vph. Idaho requires right-turn lanes when the design hourly volume (DHV) exceeds 200 vph and the right-turn volume exceeds 5 vph. Michigan DOT requires right-turn lane when the cross street average daily traffic (ADT) exceeds 600 vehicle per day (vpd). Utah

requires right-turn lane when the DHV exceeds 300 vph and the cross street ADT exceeds 100 vpd. Virginia requires right-turn lanes when the DHV exceeds 500 vph and the cross street ADT exceeds 40 vph or when the cross street volume exceeds 120 vph on high-speed highways. Wisconsin requires right-turn lane when the highway ADT exceeds 2500 and the cross street ADT exceeds 1000. South Dakota DOT follows the policy Oregon DOT follows and also has provision to use right-turn lanes in locations where five or more accidents have taken place (SDDOT 2007). North Dakota DOT determines the need for turn lanes after conducting a traffic operation analysis, which is conducted by the Planning Division of NDDOT or by a consultant (NDDOT 2004). The current Mn/DOT Road Design Manual (Mn/DOT 2000) recommends a right-turn lane when the highway ADT exceeds 1500 in a rural area and the design speed is 45 mph or higher (Mn/DOT 2000). This volume threshold is lower than all the other states cited above who based the need for right-turn lanes on the highway AADT. Even the states that based the need for a turn lane on cross street traffic set the cross street volume threshold higher. Several of these states recommend some sort of right-turn treatment at lower volumes, primarily for the purpose of facilitating the turning vehicle to more quickly clear the through lane.

The provisions of right-turn lanes as a strategy for improving the traffic safety at unsignalized intersections and the various related strategy attributes have been documented in NCHRP Report 500 (Neuman et al. 2003). Gluck et al. (1999), as a part of NCHRP 420 study, reported on the impact of access management techniques, which also looks into the role and the use of right-turn lanes as a part of the broader strategy for access management for a corridor. The NCHRP Report 491 (McGee et al. 2003) and the NCHRP Report 500 (Neuman et al. 2003) suggest carrying out cost-benefit analyses to justify intersection improvements. The ultimate decision for right turn lanes is based on operational, safety, access, and cost considerations, which makes it a multi-faceted problem.

2.5. Summary

The previous sections reviewed and summarized various different right turn related studies and the findings related to safety effects due to use of right turn lane. This review was important to obtain an insight into the nature of impacts observed or determined by past studies. The review was also important in understanding what were the significant factors used in studying the operational impact of right-turn lanes and what methods were used to study the operational impacts. In general, data on approach volume, number of right turns in approach volume, approach speed, speed differential, and type of right-turn treatments seem to impact the operational impact of right turning vehicles. Operational impacts due to right turning vehicles have been studied using field data analysis, analytical methods, simulation analysis, or a combination of these methods. The considerations for right turn lane when approach volume is less than 4000 AADT are not well understood or established. It is commonly perceived that at volumes below 4000 AADT, the impact of right-turning traffic does not impact through traffic. The warrants for right turn lane vary by states and bases for developing the warrants also differ. The effect of different turn lane lengths on the operational impact has not been an emphasis or studied adequately. In this thesis the focus is primarily on the operational considerations.

CHAPTER 3. MODELING AND ANALYSIS USING FIELD DATA

The literature review provided good insights regarding what factors influence the operational impacts of the right-turning vehicle under different conditions. To develop better understanding, field data were collected at several locations around Minnesota. The description of methodology, data collection, data reduction, and analysis using field data are provided in this Chapter. This chapter is related to the development of statistical models that can provide a good fit for the set of field data and have a good prediction. Using multiple regression, the dependent variables, space mean speed and delays, were related to independent variables, such as posted speed, approach volume, percentage or number of right-turning vehicles in approach volume, pocket length (taper length plus length of full width lane), and their interactive terms.

3.1. Methodology

The intent was to develop predictive space mean speed and delay models using the field data. This was carried out using several steps. Appropriate sites were identified. This thesis is based on a larger project sponsored by Minnesota Department of Transportation (Mn/DOT). As a result, the selection of data collection sites was based on operational, safety, access, and cost considerations; however, it was influenced more by safety considerations. Out of 5400 locations that were studied for crashes, a random selection was made for the initial data collection sites. These sites were then surveyed initially for appropriateness and broader representation. All the sites were on two-lane major roads with no controls. A detailed discussion regarding site selection procedure used is discussed in Ale (2007) and Varma et al. (2008). The data collection sites were spread all over

Minnesota and provide a good representation of the broad range of conditions that was of interest.

Numerous field data that were critical in development of speed and delay models were collected at the data collection sites that were identified. The models to predict the space mean speeds of the through vehicles, the total delay (in vehicle-minutes) encountered by following through vehicles, and delay (in seconds per vehicle) by individual following through vehicles were developed as multiple regression models by using the method of least squares. For regression theories and assumptions, model building techniques, variables screening methods, model fit assessments and other regression-related issues, Mendenhall and Sincich (2003) may be referred. The general form of a multiple regression model is shown below.

$$y = \beta_0 + \beta_1 . x_1 + \beta_2 . x_2 + ... + \beta_k . x_k + \varepsilon;$$
 3.1

where y = dependent variable;

$$\beta_0$$
 = intercept parameter;

 $\beta_1, \beta_2, ..., \beta_k$ = model coefficients;

 $x_1, x_2, ..., x_k$ = independent variables, including interaction or higher order terms; and

 ε = random error.

Models were developed based on the field data and using Minitab 15[®] software. The appropriateness and the predicting capabilities of field data based models were examined. Of particular interest in the model development was examining the effects of different pocket lengths. The pocket lengths are referred in this thesis as sum of taper length and length of full-width turn lanes. For a shared or radius treatment the pocket length was therefore zero.

The developed field data based models were validated by using the "Jack-knifing" method. The "Jack-knifing" method involves the calculation of predicted value y' _(i) value for the ith observation when the regression model is fit with the data point for y_i not considered in the sample. The measures of model validity, such as $R^2_{Jackknife}$ and MSE_{Jackknife}, were calculated using the equations given below.

$$R^{2}_{Jackknife} = 1 - [(\sum(y_{i} - y'_{(i)})^{2})/(\sum(y_{i} - mean(y))^{2})]; \qquad 3.2$$

MSE _{Jackknife} =
$$(\sum (y_i - y'_{(i)})^2)/(N-(K+1));$$
 3.3

where, The term $(y_i - y'_{(i)})^2$ is also known as Prediction Sum of Squares (PRESS);

N represents the number of data or samples used in developing the model; and

K represents the number of variables (including the interaction terms) in the model. The models were considered validated if $R^2_{Jackknife}$ was less than but close to the R^2 of the fitted model and the MSE $_{Jackknife}$ was greater than but close to the MSE of the fitted model. These jackknife measures give a more conservative (and more realistic) assessment of the ability of the model to predict future observations than the usual measures of model adequacy (Mendenhall & Sincich, 2003).

3.2. Data Collection

Field sites were selected to cover broad range of conditions that were relevant to the right turn lane contexts of interest. Traffic volume, spot speed, and time stamp data were collected at 14 intersections. The time stamp data were useful in developing headway profiles and in assessing space mean speed profiles for approach link to the intersection.

Time stamp data were also useful in developing travel time information. Spot speed data were collected using radar speed device. The volume data were collected using the JAMAR TDC-12 devices. The time stamped data were collected using the JAMAR TDC-12 devices and laptops with Traffic Tracker software.

The data collection locations were spread throughout Minnesota and involved both four-leg and three-leg (or T) intersections. The posted speed at these locations varied from 30 mph to 55 mph. There were both shared/radius treatments and exclusive turn lane treatment, with varying taper and full-width turn lane lengths. Depending upon traffic condition, especially right-turn volumes, data were collected in some cases from both approaches (for 4-legged intersections) and in other cases from only one approach of the intersection (for 3-legged intersections). Morning and evening hours were selected for collecting time-stamp data as well as speed and volume data. The physical inventory of each data collection site was done to get the intersection geometry including turn lane dimensions, lane widths, and intersection configuration. Instruments like radar guns, TDC-12, and laptops were used for data recording. Data were collected from the unsignalized and uncontrolled approach of the main street for both 4-legged and 3-legged intersections. Figure 3.1 and Tables 3.1 to 3.3 identify the locations and provide specific details regarding the data collection sites.

The field data were collected in the summers of 2007 and 2008 (see Table 3.3). The various field data collected include the following: intersection geometry (type, number of intersecting legs, skew angles, pavement widths, and turn lanes), right-turn treatment type



Figure 3.1. Data Collection Locations. Source: (Varma et al. 2008)
Int No.	City / Nearest City	Intersection Description	Study Approach	Int. Type	Right-turn Treatment	Speed (mph)
1	Aitkin	MNTH-210/CR-54 & CR-56	MNTH-210 West	+	Radius	55
2	Aitkin	MNTH-210/CR-54 & CR-56	MNTH-210 East	+	Radius	55
3	St. Bonifacius	MNTH-7/CR-10	MNTH-7 West	+	Exclusive	55
4	St. Bonifacius	MNTH-7/CR-10	MNTH-7 East	+	Exclusive	55
5	Staples	US-10/12th St. NE	US-10 West	+	Radius	30
6	Staples	US-10/12th St. NE	US-10 East	+	Radius	30
7	Dawson	US-212/4th St.	US-212 East	+	Radius	30
8	Moorhead I	US-75/46th Ave. S.	US-75 North	Т	Exclusive	55
9	Moorhead 2	12th Ave. S/15th St. S	12th Ave. S. West	Т	Radius	30
10	Moorhead 3	28th Ave. N. (CR-18)/34th St. N	28th Ave. N West	Т	Radius	55
11	Park Rapids	MNTH-34/CR-4	MNTH-34 East	Т	Exclusive	55
12	Forest Lake 1	US-61/240th St.	US-61 North	+	Shared	55
13	Forest Lake 2	US-61/250th St.	US-61 North	+	Exclusive	55
14	Forest Lake 2	US-61/250th St.	US-61 South	+	Exclusive	55
15	Tyler	US-14/CR-8	US-14 East	Т	Exclusive	35
16	Lindstrom	MNTH-8/Akerson St.	MNTH-8 West	+	Exclusive	30
17	Lowry	M55/CR 114	M55 - West	Т	Radius	30
18	Ruthton	MNTH-23/CR-10	MNTH-23 North	+	Exclusive	55
19	Ruthton	MNTH-23/CR-10	MNTH-23 South	+	Exclusive	55

Table 3.1. Details of Data Collection Locations.

Table 3.2. Details of Right Turn Treatments at Data Collection Locations.

Int No.	City / Nearest City	Study Approach	Int. Type	Taper Length (ft)	Full Width Lane Length (ft)	Total Length (ft)
1	Aitkin	MNTH-210 West	+	0	0	0
2	Aitkin	MNTH-210 East	+	0	0	0
3	St. Bonifacius	MNTH-7 West	+	180	250	430
4	St. Bonifacius	MNTH-7 East	+	200	240	440
5	Staples	US-10 West	+	0	0	0
6	Staples	US-10 East	+	0	0	0
7	Dawson	US-212 East	+	0	0	30
8	Moorhead 1	US-75 North	Т	170	240	410
9	Moorhead 2	12th Ave. S. West	Т	0	0	0
10	Moorhead 3	28th Ave. N West	Т	0	0	0
11	Park Rapids	MNTH-34 East	Т	157	142	299
12	Forest Lake 1	US-61 North	+	0	0	0
13	Forest Lake 2	US-61 North	+	185	280	465
14	Forest Lake 2	US-61 South	+	200	240	440
15	Tyler	US-14 East	Т	75	160	235
16	Lindstrom	MNTH-8 West	+	173	188	361
17	Lowry	M55 - West	Т	0	0	0
18	Ruthton	MNTH-23 North	+	186	276	462
19	Ruthton	MNTH-23 South	+	180	280	460

Serial	Location	Date	Time Stamp and Spot Speed Studies
1	Aitkin		Morning and Afternoon
2	Dawson	29-May-07	Morning
3	Forest Lake (1)	22-May-07	Morning
4	Forest Lake (2)	30-May-07	Morning and Afternoon
5	Lindstrom	22-May-07	Afternoon
6	Lowry	25-May-07	Afternoon
7	Moorhead (1)	1-Jun-07	Morning
8	Moorhead (2)	5-Jun-07	Morning
9	Moorhead (3)	5-Jun-07	Afternoon
10	Park Rapids	31-May-07	Afternoon
11	Ruthton	24-May-07	Morning and Afternoon
12	St. Bonifacius	23-May-07; 29-May-07	Morning and Afternoon
13	Staples (1)	31-May-07	Morning
14	Staples (2)	31-May-07	Morning
15	Staples (3)	31-May-07	Morning
16	Tyler	25-May-07	Morning

Table 3.3. Time for Data Collection.

(including right-turn pocket length and right-turn taper length in case of exclusive rightturn lane treatment), posted speed limit for the study approach, approach traffic volumes, and right-turn traffic volumes during 15-minute time intervals.

Volume data were collected at 15-minute time intervals using JAMAR TDC-12 device for the study approach of interest. In addition, spot speed and time stamped data were collected at specific locations, which varied for shared and exclusive right turn treatments. Time Stamp Data were collected using JAMAR's Traffic Data Collector (TDC-12). Spot Speeds were collected using Laser and Radar Guns. For shared or radius right turn treatments time stamp data were collected at points B and A, and spot speeds were collected at points X, B and A (see Figure 3.2). For exclusive right-turn treatments time stamp data were collected at points B, C and A, and spot speeds were collected at points X, B, C and A (see Figure 3.3).



Figure 3.2. Data Collection for Shared/Radius Right Turn Treatme Source: (Varma et al. 2008)



Figure 3.3. Data Collection for Exclusive Right Turn Treatments. Source: (Varma et al. 2008)

The time-gap data were collected by using TDC-12's at points A, B or C simultaneously in a time-synchronized manner by two or three observers, as applicable, for a minimum time period of two hours. On the other hand, the spot-speed data, collected by using Laser/Radar guns, were observed by two observers together; one to direct the Laser/Radar gun towards the traffic and the other to record the observed spot speeds. A minimum of eighty spot-speed observations were collected at each of these points (A, B, X or C, see Table 3.4 below). Whenever possible, every care was taken by the spot-speed observers to be hidden or inconspicuous from the traffic on the study approach to avoid affecting the traffic behavior.

Point	Data	Right-turn Treatment Type				
	Туре	Radius	Exclusive Lane			
A	Time gap, Spot speed	Stop bar	Stop bar			
В	Time gap, Spot speed	200 ft from point A at 'low' speed approach 500 ft from point A at 'high' speed approach	Start of the right-turn lane taper			
С	Time gap, Spot speed	-	200 ft from point B at 'low' speed approach 500 ft from point B at 'high' speed approach			
X	Spot speed	More than 800 ft from stop bar	More than 800 ft from stop bar			

Table 3.4. Specifications of Time-Gap and Spot-Speed Data Collection Points.

Note: Low speed means less than or equal to 40 mph and High Speed is Greater than 40 mph

3.3. Data Reductions

Field data were reduced using post processing of TDC data that were collected. The recorded data from the field was uploaded into computers same day they were collected. Records were first transferred into computers in their original file formats. Later, the data was processed in Excel[®]. The processed, final data included average spot speeds, free-flow speeds, space mean speeds, and the data related to site geometry. Final tables were developed from the processed data.

The intent of data collection was also to fulfill the data requirement for calibration and field validation of the simulation models that are discussed in next chapter. Data processing and reduction included the steps involved in the processing of lane geometry data, records from TDC-12, data from traffic tracker software on laptop, and the radar gun. The intent was to make the data readily usable for statistical modeling and analysis, and also for calibration and validation of simulation model. Lane geometry data was recorded from the site and compiled with intersection drawings. Later, the data was tabulated making it readily usable for developing statistical models and base simulation models. For spot speeds, the values observed from the radar gun were noted in the field book. The records were then entered into Excel[®] to compute the averages. The spot speeds included the free-flow speed and the spot speed of vehicles at A, B and C, and also the spot speeds of right-turning vehicles.

Records from TDC-12 were downloaded as a Petra Pro[®] data file. In order to process the data, the data was exported into EXCEL[®]. The data from the traffic tracker was readily downloadable in EXCEL[®] without any transformation. These data were in the form of time records for each vehicle at position A and B for shared case, and A, B and C for exclusive case, as shown earlier in Figures 3.2 and 3.3. The data were processed to calculate the travel time for all vehicles, the travel times for right-turning vehicles and through vehicles, the number of right-turning and through vehicles, the space mean speed of through vehicles, the space mean speed of right-turning vehicles and the delay for through vehicles in terms of vehicle-minutes as well as seconds per through vehicles.

The time of travel from B to A in the shared case (see Figure 3.2) was computed by taking the difference in time stamps at points B and A. The time of travel from C to A in the exclusive case (see Figure 3.3) was determined by the difference in time stamps at C and A. Total travel time for through vehicles was calculated as the summation of individual times of travel of all through vehicles. Similarly, total travel time for right-turning vehicles was determined as the summation of individual time of travel of all right-turning vehicles . Following four important equations were used to determine the total travel time for through vehicles under free-flow conditions (Equation 3.4), the space mean speeds (Equation 3.5), total delay for through vehicles (Equation 3.6), and average vehicle delay (Equation 3.7).

Total time for travel for through vehicles in free-flow speed

= (link length/ free-flow speed) * Number of through vehicles 3.4

Space mean speed (for through or right-turning vehicles)

= (Number of through or right-turning vehicles * Link length)/	
Total time for travel for through or right-turning vehicles	3.5

Total Delay (vehicle-minutes) for through vehicles

= Total time of travel for through vehicles –	
Total time for travel for through vehicles in free-flow speed	3.6

Delay (seconds/through vehicle)

= (Delay (vehicle-minutes)
$$*$$
 60)/ (Number of through vehicles) 3.7

3.4. Models

The least squares prediction models, using field data, was developed based on approximately eighty independent observations. The data for 15-minute time intervals were used in developing models. Three different models were developed for through vehicle's space mean speed, total delay to through vehicles, and average vehicle delay to through vehicles. The dependent variables in the three models were the average space mean speed in miles per hour (mph), total vehicle delay in vehicle-minutes, and average vehicle delay in seconds per through vehicle, respectively, observed during a 15-minute time interval. The independent variables considered were posted roadway speed limit, total approach volume (during 15-minute time interval), right-turn volume or right turn percentage (during 15-minute time interval), pocket length (taper plus full width lane length), and the interaction terms. Stepwise regressions were carried out first to identify the significant independent variables, including the interaction and the higher order terms. After removing insignificant variables from the model-building process, the prediction model that finally fitted the best was determined. If interaction terms turned out to be significant then the

individual terms were retained in the model, despite the individual terms not having significant probability values.

3.4.1. Model 1: Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model

The space mean speed prediction model that finally best fitted the field data is provided below as Equation 3.8. The model was for determining the space mean speed of the through vehicles.

SMS-TH = 3.376 + 0.87176*(SPEED) + 0.03462*(VOL) - 6.183*(RT%) +

0.00759*(POC)-0.00016682*(POC)*(VOL) + 0.06454*(RT%)*(POC) 3.8

 $[S = 4.66709, R^2 = 84.10\%, Adj. R^2 = 82.80\%]$

where	SMS-TH	= space mean	speed of through	vehicles (in mph);
-------	--------	--------------	------------------	--------------------

SPEED = posted speed for the approach (in mph);

- VOL = approach volume during 15-minute time interval;
- RT% = percentage of vehicles in 15-minute approach volume turning right; and
- POC = pocket length (taper length plus full-width lane length).

The parameter estimates and the residual plots of the field data based space mean speed statistical model are presented in Table 3.5 and Figure 3.4, respectively.

Predictor	β Coefficient	Std. Error of Coefficient	T- Statistic	P-Value
Intercept	3.37600	2.616	1.29	0.201
(SPEED)	0.87176	0.06865	12.70	0.000
(VOL)	0.03462	0.02469	1.40	0.165
(RT%)	-6.1830	5.916	-1.05	0.299
(POC)	0.007591	0.006747	1.13	0.264
(POC)*(VOL)	-0.00016682	0.00006183	-2.70	0.009
(RT%).(POC)	0.06454	0.02463	2.62	0.011

Table 3.5. Parameter Estimates of Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model.



Figure 3.4. Residual Plots for Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model.

3.4.2. Model 2: Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model

The total vehicle delay (in vehicle-minutes) prediction model that finally best fitted the field data is provided below as Equation 3.9. This model is for determining the cumulative delay (in vehicle-minutes) encountered by through vehicles on the approach link leading to the intersection.

$$TD = 1.2555 - 0.029184*(SPEED) + 0.011338*(VOL) + 0.01635*(RT)$$

 $[S = 0.607431, R^2 = 57.30\%, Adj. R^2 = 53.30\%]$

where TD = total delay (in vehicle-minutes) by through vehicles during the

15-minute time interval;

3.9

- **SPEED** = posted speed for the approach (in mph);
- VOL = approach volume during 15-minute time interval;
- RT = number of right-turning vehicles in 15-minute approach volume; and
- **POC** = pocket length (taper length plus full-width lane length).

The parameter estimates and the residual plots of the total delay statistical model are

presented in Table 3.6 and Figure 3.5, respectively.

				2 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
Predictor	β Coefficient	Std. Error T- cient of Coefficient Statistic		P-Value
Intercept	1.2555	0.3586	3.50	0.001
(SPEED)	-0.029184	0.009287	-3.14	0.002
(VOL)	0.011338	0.002941	3.86	0.000
(RT)	0.01635	0.02350	0.70	0.489
(POC)	-0.007116	0.003673	-1.94	0.056
(RT)*(VOL)	-0.0004142	0.0001517	-2.73	0.008
(POC)*(VOL)	0.00002251	0.00001099	2.05	0.044
(POC)*(SPEED)	0.00014267	0.00006968	2.05	0.044

Table 3.6. Parameter Estimates of Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model.

3.4.3. Model 3: Field Data Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model

The vehicle delay (in seconds per vehicle) prediction model that finally best fitted the field data is provided below as Equation 3.10. This model predicts the average delay in seconds through vehicle encounter on the approach leading to right turn movement at intersection.

$$VD = 3.1735 - 0.06463*(SPEED) + 0.006622*(VOL) - 7.735*(RT%)$$

-0.012190*(POC) - 0.05830*(RT%)*(VOL) + 0.24074*(RT%)*(SPEED)

+ 0.00025765*(POC)*(SPEED)

 $[S = 0.55896, R^2 = 38.60\%, Adj. R^2 = 32.7\%]$

where VD = average through vehicle delay in seconds;

SPEED = posted speed for the approach;

VOL = 15-minute approach volume;

3.10



Figure 3.5. Residual Plots for Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model.

RT% = percentage of vehicles in 15-minute approach volume turning right; and

POC = pocket length (taper length plus full-width lane length)

The parameter estimates and the residual plots of the space mean speed prediction model are presented in Table 3.7 and Figure 3.6, respectively.

Predictor	β Coefficient	Std. Error of Coefficient	T- Statistic	P-Value	
Intercept	3.1735	0.4144	7.66	0.000	
(SPEED)	-0.06463	0.01115	-5.79	0.000	
(VOL)	0.006622	0.002664	2.49	0.015	
(RT%)	-7.735	2.230	-3.47	0.001	
(POC)	-0.012190	0.003353	-3.64	0.001	
(RT%)*(VOL)	-0.05830	0.01709	-3.41	0.001	
(RT%)*(SPEED)	0.24074	0.05561	4.33	0.000	
(POC)*(SPEED)	0.00025765	0.00006235	4.13	0.000	

Table 3.7. Parameter Estimates of Field Data Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model.





3.5. Validation of Models

As stated before for the validation of the statistical models developed based on multiple regression of field data, the "Jack-knifing" method was used. The models related to space mean speed, total vehicle delay (in vehicle-minutes), and average vehicle delay (seconds per vehicle) were validated. The models were considered validated if $R^2_{jacknife}$ was less than R^2 of the fitted model and the MSE_{jackknife} was greater than the MSE of the fitted model (see Table 3.8). The statistical models that were developed were checked only for adequacy in terms of fitness to the sample data. The test for validity was done to assess how much these models were successful at predicting when there was no data splitting or no new data were collected. There are some interesting insights developed from these models developed using field data. Space mean speed of through vehicles on the approach link leading to the intersection is impacted by speed, approach volume, percentage of right-turn vehicles in approach volume, pocket length, as well as interaction terms of pocket length and approach volume, and percentage right turn in approach volume and pocket length. It was interesting to see that percentage right turn and pocket length did not have significant probability values, but the overall model improved when the interaction terms (POC*VOL and POC*RT%) were introduced. The strength of relationship for space mean speed is strong and the signs do make sense. The space mean speed increases as posted speed increases and pocket length increases. The increase in right turn percentage decreases space mean speed.

Model	Dependent Variable	PRESS	R ² (fitted model)	$\mathbf{R}^2_{jackknife}$	MSE (fitted model)	MSE jacknife
Model I	Space Mean Speed	1993.89	84.10%	80.84%	21.800	26.2354
Model 2	Total Delay (vehicle-minutes)	35.4033	56.30%	45.31%	0.3737	0.4720
Model 3	Vehicle Delay (seconds/vehicle)	28.1337	38.60%	24.22%	0.3124	0.3854

Table 3.8. Validation of Field Data Based Statistical Models.

Total delay to through vehicles on the approach link leading to the intersection is influenced by posted speed limit, approach volume, right turn volume, and pocket length. Total delay decreases with increasing posted speed limit. Total delay increases with increase in approach volume and right turn volume. Total delay decreases with increase in pocket length. The relationship of total delay was not as strong as was observed for space mean speed model.

Vehicle delay in seconds per vehicle is influenced by posted speed limit, approach volume, right turn volume, and pocket length. Vehicle delay decreases with increase in

posted speed and increase in pocket length. Vehicle delay model was not as strong, but all variables included in the model were quite strong.

The models related to space mean speed, total vehicle delay (in vehicle-minutes), and average vehicle delay (seconds per vehicle) were found to be valid as $R^2_{jacknifc}$ was less than R^2 of the fitted model and the MSE_{jackknife} was greater than the MSE of the fitted model (see Table 3.8).

The models identified significant variables influencing space mean speed, total delay, and vehicle delay. These models can be improved by developing simulation model and developing statistical models using results from the simulation models. This is particularly true for determining the vehicle delays.

3.7. Summary

Type and amount of field data that were collected over nineteen different intersection approaches around Minnesota resulting in 80 independent data was described and discussed. These data were then analyzed to develop space mean speed model and delay models. The models for space mean speed and for total delay provided several insights. The model for average delay for individual vehicle was not as robust. It was also evident that field data analysis was limited and challenging. Thus, the need to use simulation models, based on field data related calibration and validation, was realized and pursued.

CHAPTER 4. MODELING AND ANALYSIS USING SIMULATION

The literature review and field data analysis together provided additional insights regarding what factors influence the operational impacts of the right-turning vehicle under different conditions and to what degree. However, getting complete understanding by field data alone was challenging and limiting. To develop a more comprehensive understanding, simulation model was developed using field data, and the data from simulation models were analyzed. The description of methodology, calibration of simulation model, validation of results from simulation model, and analysis using data from simulation model are provided in this Chapter.

4.1. Overall Methodology

The overall methodology involved several steps. First, a base model was developed. Next, the developed model was calibrated and validated. Finally, statistical model was developed from the data generated from numerous scenarios modeled using thousands of simulation. Simulation was useful in understanding and identifying the nature and extent of operational impacts under many more varying conditions. This understanding was also used in field data collection setup, which was then used for calibration purposes. CORSIM[®] was used to model and simulate right-turn movements under various conditions.

The CORSIM and VISSIM models have been comprehensively reviewed in the past (ITS 2000; Bloomberg and Dale 2000; Gettman and Head 2003). There are advantages as well as disadvantages associated with each of them. Benekohal et al. (2001) compared the delay from HCM[®], SYNCHRO[®], PASSER II[®], PASSER IV[®] and CORSIM[®] for urban

arterial and addressed CORSIM[®] as a standard in comparison among other software, due to its microscopic nature. Moen et al. (2000) compared the procedure for delay calculation of CORSIM[®] and VISSIM[®] and identified that CORSIM[®] calculates the delay for each vehicle by subtracting the travel time at the desired, free-flow speed from the actual travel time. Gafarian and Halati (1986) defined NETSIM as a stochastic microscopic traffic simulation model with a sampling interval of one second. Dowling et al. (2004) defined microscopic models as those capable of simulating the characteristics and interaction of individual vehicles using various algorithms, like car following, lane changing, and gap acceptance. Benekohal and Ayacin (2001) indicated that in NETSIM, the car following model was designed so that in each second's advancement of the lead vehicle, the follower vehicle was moved to the location so that the follower vehicle should be able to stop without collision, if the lead vehicle decelerated with a maximum deceleration rate. Siddiqui (2003) used NETSIM software for urban network as a basis to provide logical and sequential calibration and validation of micro simulation traffic models. In terms of validation, Sacks et al. (2002) found that CORSIM[®] output might match with field observations if it is carefully tuned and calibrated.

4.2. Simulation Model Development

Unlike the analysis that involves real world traffic, which almost always consists of some vehicles already present on the road network, the traffic simulation models, including the CORSIM[®] models, usually start at time 'zero' with no vehicle present on the road network. The terms 'warm-up period' or 'initialization period' of a simulation model refer to the artificial time period required for the model to reach the expected real-world steady state condition from an empty state. At the initial stage of traffic simulation, the system is

expected to run faster as it takes time to build up congestion and delays. It is important that such initial bias is removed from the analysis, especially when the simulation outputs are compared with the real world observations as in model calibrations and model validations. A detail analysis is generally required to determine the warm-up period in case of traffic simulation involving complex road network.

4.2.1. Base and Preliminary Models

The base model was developed for shared case and exclusive case. The exclusive case was first studied for a particular intersection to carry out calibration and validation. In the preliminary stage, the simulation model development was aimed at understanding the principles of micro simulation in general and that are adopted in CORSIM[®] software. in particular. It started with creating a network on Traffic Network Editor (TRAFED) using links and nodes, and feeding the input variables like speed, total volumes, and the volumes of right-turning vehicles into the network. In the beginning of the study, the networks were simulated based on default values for relevant parameters. Several simulation runs were made to know what initialization period to choose, what types of error checking to perform, and the appropriate number of simulation runs required to get valid results. These sensitivity analyses, based on the preliminary base models, were very useful in identifying what data to collect for model calibration. In addition, speed profile examination provided insight about where the data should be collected in order to obtain speed data where the speed of traveling vehicles was not impacted by right-turning vehicles.

The base models were developed in couple of stages. In the beginning of the study, preliminary models were developed with link and nodes in TRAFED with assumed dimensions. The configuration of these models was like the link-node diagram shown in

Figure 4.1. The main purpose of the preliminary models was to carry out the exploratory analysis that could aid in development of better models.



Figure 4.1. Link-Node Diagram in CORSIM[®] for 4-Legged Intersections.

The base models were run with low and high values of variables like speed, volume and, right-turning percentages. Errors in feeding inputs were checked by running trial simulations and making sure there were no error messages in the dialogue box, as well as in TRF files after running. If an error was found, then models were run again after eliminating the errors.

4.2.2. Calibration

The general concept was to develop simulation models for intersections with shared and exclusive right-turn treatments that would, in general, represent all intersections with shared and exclusive right-turn treatments similar to the surveyed intersections. When a sensitivity analysis was performed on the default model, several parameters in the NETSIM set up within CORSIM were altered and the effect was observed in output values

of speeds and delays. However, most parameters were found to have no effect on speed and delay. The percentage multiplier of free-flow speed, the time to react to a sudden deceleration of the lead vehicle, the deceleration rate of the lead vehicle, the deceleration rate of the follower vehicle, and allowable right-turning speed had some effect. The driver type in CORSIM[®] is divided into 10 categories ranging from 1 to 10 based upon the aggressiveness. Driver Type 1 is a timid driver and Driver Type 10 is the most aggressive driver. CORSIM[®] assigns different percentage multipliers of free-flow speed according to driver types. The default multiplier ranges from 75 to 125. It is possible to develop the distribution of the free-flow speed multiplier according to the driver type categorized based upon field measured free-flow speeds. The percentage multiplier of free-flow speed was found to be a very sensitive factor that can bring considerable change in Measures of Effectiveness (MOEs). Time to react to a sudden deceleration is also considered to be a very sensitive factor. However, it is generally not used if the desired calibration can be achieved by altering other parameters. Sample study locations are shown below in Figure 4.2 for Aitkin and St. Bonifacius.



Four-legged intersection on MNTH-210 with CR-54/CR-56 near Aitkin with west approach in view (low volume-high speed-shared right turn treatment)



Four-legged intersection on MNTH-7 with CR-10 near Saint Bonifacius viewed from west approach (high volume-high speed-exclusive right turn treatment)

Figure 4.2. Locations used for Calibration.

After several attempts, the driver type distribution that provided the best calibration for shared and exclusive cases were determined and are shown below in Figures 4.3 and 4.4. The models were calibrated by examining the results of space mean speed for both through and right-turn vehicles on the approach link to the intersection. The networks for the shared and exclusive cases were built according to the context found at Aitkin (for shared case) and Saint Bonifacius (for exclusive case). The calibration results are shown in Table 4.1. There was close match between both the space mean speed for through and right turning vehicles using field data and simulation results.



Figure 4.3. Driver Type Distribution for Shared Treatment.



Figure 4.4. Driver Type Distribution for Exclusive Treatment.

Location	Type	Approach	Through	SMS-Through (mph)		SMS – Right Turn			
(Time)		Volume	Volume			(mph)	U		
				Field	Simulation	Field	Simulation		
Aitkin				-					
(4:45-5:00)	Shared	27	25	56.36	56.47	31.02	33.9		
Aitkin			1						
(5:00-5:15)	Shared	40	37	52.5	52.41	44.7	44.6		
Saint	Exclusive								
Bonifacius		69	63	59	59.44	38.56	36.42		
(5:20-5:35)					-				
Saint	Exclusive								
Bonifacius		64	59	60	59.43	37.76	36.87		
(5:35-5:50)									

Table 4.1. Calibration Results.

4.2.3. Validation

For validation purposes, the through vehicle delay (seconds/vehicle), the total delay for through vehicles (vehicle-minutes) and the total (travel) time from the simulations were compared with the field-measured values. These comparisons were done for intersections at Aitkin and Saint Bonifacius. There was closer match for travel time and total delay. Similar comparisons were found for Forest Lake and Ruthton. The Validation results are shown in Table 4.2.

				T			
Location	Approach	Travel Time (minutes)		Total Delay-Through		Vehicle Delay	
(Time)	Volume			(Vehicle-	Minutes)	Through	
[Type]	(Through					(seconds	/vehicle)
	Volume)	Field	Simulation	Field	Simulation	Field	Simulation
Aitkin	27 (25)	3.16	2.74	0.1	0.1	0.31	0.24
(4:45-5:00)							
[Shared]							
Aitkin	40 (37)	4.05	3.99	0.26	0.24	0.21	0.39
(5:00-5:15)							
[Shared]							
Saint	69 (63)	7.59	7.52	0.60	0.83	0.64	0.89
Bonifacius							
(5:20-5:35)							
[Exclusive]							
Saint	64 (59)	7.07	7.10	0.35	0.85	0.38	0.91
Bonifacius							
(5:35-5:50)							
[Exclusive]							

Table 4.2. Validation Results.

4.2.4. Modeled Scenarios

After observing spot speed profiles (which are discussed in Section 4.2.5), it was determined what was the extent of the impact of right turning vehicle. It was decided that the length of the test approach link should be kept at 800 ft. The length of the immediate following link was kept 500 ft. and the rest of the links were kept at 200 ft. In the case of exclusive right-turn treatment, the length of the pocket was varied depending on the context where data were collected. Ten runs were made for each combination using run-time extension codes.

The calibrated and validated model was used for simulating various modeling scenarios. For comparison purposes the network was kept consistent for both shared and exclusive cases. In other words the approach link lengths were kept same for both the shared and exclusive cases. The only difference was the presence of pocket length of different lengths in the approach link for the exclusive cases. The networks used for modeling various scenarios for the shared and exclusive cases are shown in Figures 4.5 and 4.6, respectively. The pocket length varied in the exclusive cases. Simulations were carried out for pocket lengths of 150 ft, 300 ft (which is shown in Figure 4.6), 480 ft, and 600 ft. Hence, the network was modified each time new pocket length was used. However, in all instances, for both shared and exclusive cases the approach link to the intersection that was of interest was kept the same as 800 ft. This allowed for better comparison of operational performances in terms of space mean speed and the delays.

The intent was to simulate a wide variety of conditions and generate speed and delay data for those conditions (see Table 4.3), which could then be analyzed for better understanding and also for development of predictive statistical models. Ten runs were



Figure 4.5. Network for Simulating Modeling Scenarios for Shared Cases.



Figure 4.6. Network for Simulating Modeling Scenarios for Exclusive Cases.

made for each scenario. As a result, 2400 simulations were carried out to generate data on spot speed of through vehicles at different detector locations, space mean speed of through vehicles on approach link, total delay for all through vehicles on approach during 15minute period of analysis (in vehicle-minutes), and through vehicle delay (in seconds per through vehicle) for all the scenarios of interest. A considerable amount of post processing using SAS[®] and EXCEL[®] was done to get the final data of interest.

Variables	Levels
VOLVolume (15-min approach	4 Levels (corresponding to rate of flow of
volume)	100 vph, 200 vph, 300 vph, 400 vph)
SPEED—Posted Speed (in mph)	3 Levels (30 mph, 45 mph, 55 mph)
RT%Percentage of right-turning	4 Levels (1%, 5%, 10%, 15%)

Table 4.3. List of Independent Variables and their Levels.

Table 4.3 Continued	
vehicle in 15-minute Approach Volume RT—Number of Right-Turning Vehicle in 15-minute Approach Volume (this could be calculated from RT% and VOL variables)	
POC—Pocket Length, which was sum of taper length and full-width turn lane length)	5 levels (0 ft, 150 ft, 300 ft, 480 ft, 600 ft). Shared treatment is corresponding to POC

4.2.5. Speed Results from Simulation

Simulation results for spot speed profiles at different detectors are shown in Figures 4.7 to 4.18 and also in Figures C.1 to C.16 in Appendix C. Simulation results for space mean speeds are shown in Figures 4.19 to 4.20 and Figure C.17 in Appendix C.



Figure 4.7. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Shared Treatment.



Figure 4.8. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 150 feet).



Figure 4.9. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 480 feet).



Figure 4.10. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 600 feet).



Figure 4.11. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Shared Treatment.



Figure 4.12. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 150 feet).



Figure 4.13. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 480 feet).



Figure 4.14. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 600 feet).



Figure 4.15. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 100 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure 4.16. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 400 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure 4.17. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 100 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure 4.18. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 400 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure 4.19. Space Mean Speed of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 30 mph Posted Speed.



Figure 4.20. Space Mean Speed of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 55 mph Posted Speed.

4.2.6. Delay Results from Simulations

The two types of delay results that were examined were those related to delay to individual through vehicles and the total delay to through vehicles on the approach link leading to the intersection. In field data based models the delay models were not as robust and using the simulation delay results were improved. The impacts of various factors, including pocket length, on total delay are shown in Figures 4.21 and 4.22. The vehicle delay impacts due to various factors are shown in Figures 4.23 and 4.24. Simulation allowed developing better and more detailed understanding about these influencing factors and their impacts, which in turn can help in improved design and implementation of rightturn lanes.



Figure 4.21. Total Delay (in Vehicle-Minutes) of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 30 mph Posted Speed.



Figure 4.22. Total Delay (in Vehicle-Minutes) of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 55 mph Posted Speed.



Figure 4.23. Average Delay (in Seconds/Vehicle) of Through Vehicle on Approach Link for 30 mph Posted Speed.



Figure 4.24. Average Delay (in Seconds/Vehicle) of Through Vehicle on Approach Link for 55 mph Posted Speed.

4.3. Development of Statistical Model Using Data from Simulation

The simulation model results from various modeled scenarios were compiled. To assess the nature of the relationship between the dependent variables, delays and space mean speed, with the independent variables such as speed, approach volumes, the percentage of right-turns in approach volumes or the number of right turning vehicles, pocket lengths, the statistical methods were used. Multiple regressions were used to make the relationship into model equations. In choosing the models, the predictability of the models were assessed with R² values, the Mean Square Error (MSE), and the nature of scatter plot of the residuals. Several trial models were prepared and the final models were chosen from among them. For regression theories and assumptions, model building techniques, variables screening methods, model fit assessments and other regression-related issues, Mendenhall and Sincich (2003) may be referred.

Separate least squares conflict prediction models were developed based on the field data (field model) and the simulation data (simulation model) using Minitab 15 software. The appropriateness and the predicting capabilities of field and simulation models were examined and compared. At the first stage, the statistical analysis was conducted with the multiple regression using speed, volume, the percentage of right-turning vehicles or the number of right turning vehicles, pocket lengths, and the two-way and three-way interaction effects among the above variables. All the terms were considered in the first model, and backward elimination was done to remove the variables that did not contribute significantly to the prediction of dependent variables, delays and space mean speed, at a confidence interval of 95%. The models were assessed in terms of R², MSE, and residual plots.

4.3.1. Model 4: Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model

The space mean speed prediction model that finally best fitted the data generated from simulation is provided below as Equation 4.1. The model was for determining the space mean speed of the through vehicles.

4.1

$$[S = 0.527015, R^2 = 99.7\%, Adj. R^2 = 99.7\%]$$

where	SMS-TH	= space mean speed of through vehicles (in mph);
	SPEED	= posted speed for the approach (in mph);
	VOL	= approach volume during 15-minute time interval;
	RT%	= percentage of vehicles in 15-minute approach volume turning
		right; and

POC = pocket length (taper length plus full-width lane length).

The parameter estimates and the residual plots of the simulation based space mean speed statistical model are presented in Table 4.4 and Figure 4.25, respectively.

Table 4.4. Parameter Estimates of Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model.

Predictor	β Coefficient	Std. Error of Coefficient	T- Statistic	P-Value
Intercept	-0.9892	0.1955	-5.06	0.000
(VOL)	-0.109986	0.004908	-22.41	0.000
(RT%)	-0.02797	0.01134	-2.47	0.014
(SPEED)	0.998905	0.003330	299.95	0,000
(POC)	0.0006853	0.0002800	2.45	0.015
(RT%).(POC)	0.00008324	0.00003011	2.76	0.006



Figure 4.25. Residual Plots for Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model.

4.3.2. Model 5: Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model

The total vehicle delay (in vehicle-minutes) prediction model that finally fitted the simulation generated data is provided below as Equation 4.2. The model was for determining the cumulative delay (in vehicle-minutes) encountered by through vehicles.

TD = 0.975 - 0.0302*(SPEED) + 0.0947*(VOL) + 0.546*(RT) - 0.000031*(POC)

+ 0.0123*(RT)*(VOL) - 0.0160*(RT)*(SPEED)

-0.000424*(POC)*(SPEED)

 $[S = 0.403423, R^2 = 83.7\%, Adj. R^2 = 83.2\%]$

where TD = total delay (in vehicle-minutes) by through vehicles in vehicle-minutes during the 15-minute period of analysis;

4.2

SPEED = posted speed limit, mph;

- VOL = approach volume in 15-minute period;
- RT = number of right-turning vehicles in 15-minute approach volume; and
- POC = pocket length (sum of taper length and full width lane length in feet).

The parameter estimates and the residual plots of the total delay prediction model are presented in Table 4.5 and Figure 4.26, respectively.

Predictor	β Coefficient	Std. Error of Coefficient	T- Statistic	P-Value
Intercept	0.9754	0.2023	4.82	0.000
(SPEED)	-0.030194	0.003953	-7.63	0.000
(VOL)	0.094676	0.005953	15.90	0.000
(RT)	0.5459	0.1505	3.63	0.000
(POC)	-0.0000310	0.0001869	-0.17	0.869
(RT)*(VOL)	0.012269	0.004695	2.61	0.010
(RT)*(SPEED)	-0.016016	0.002436	-6.57	0.000
(RT)*(POC)	-0.0004242	0.0001153	-3.68	0.000

Table 4.5. Parameter Estimates of Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model.



Figure 4.26. Residual Plots for Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model.
4.3.3. Model 6: Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model

This model determines the delay to individual vehicles on average in seconds per vehicle. The vehicle delay (in seconds per vehicle) prediction model that finally fitted field data is provided below as Equation 4.3. This model predicts the average delay in seconds through vehicle encounter on the approach leading to right turn movement.

$$VD = 1.87 - 0.0364*(SPEED) + 0.0469*(VOL) + 0.463*(RT) - 0.000083*(POC)$$

4.3

$$-$$
 0.00860*(RT)*(SPEED) $-$ 0.000287*(RT)*(POC)

$$[S = 0.238720, R^2 = 86.8\%, Adj. R^2 = 86.5\%]$$

where	VD	= through vehicle delay in seconds;
	SPEED	= posted speed for the approach;
	VOL	= 15-minute approach volume;
	RT	= right turning volume in 15-minute time interval; and
	POC	= pocket length (taper length plus full-width lane length)

The parameter estimates and the residual plots of the space mean speed prediction model are presented in Table 4.6 and Figure 4.27, respectively.

				*
Predictor	β Coefficient	Std. Error of Coefficient	T- Statistic	P-Value
Intercept	1.8690	0.1112	16.80	0.000
(SPEED)	-0.036447	0.002299	-15.86	0.000
(VOL)	0.046851	0.002577	18.18	0.000
(RT)	0.46261	0.06764	6.84	0.000
(POC)	-0.0000831	0.0001093	-0.76	0.447
(RT)*(POC)	-0.00028697	0.00007010	-4.09	0.000
(RT)*(SPEED)	-0.008603	0.001460	-5.89	0.000

Table 4.6. Parameter Estimates of Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model.



Figure 4.27. Residual Plots for Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model.

4.3.4. Validation of Statistical Models Based on Simulation Data

To make sure the calibrated models represented the real situation of each site, field validation was performed. The output from the calibrated models' delay (veh-min), delay (secs/through-veh) and the total time of travel (minutes) were matched with values processed from the field data as shown in Table 4.7 below.

Model ·	Dependent Variable	PRESS	R ² (fitted model)	R ² jackimile	MSE (fitted model)	MSEjeckatie
Model 4	Space Mean Speed	68.5252	99.75%	99.73%	0.2954	0.3000
Model 5	Total Delay (vehicle-minutes)	40.1745	83.70%	82.38%	0.1630	0.1762
Model 6	Vehicle Delay (seconds/vehicle)	14.0907	86.80%	85.89%	0.0570	0.0610

Table 4.7. Validation of Simulation Data Based Models.

4.3.5. Discussion of Results

Spot speed profiles results provided how effective pocket lengths were. A pocket length was considered as zero for shared or radius treatment. The speed reduction is much more under shared context than in case of exclusive treatments. The effectiveness of the turn lane lengths is also evident from the spot speed profiles. The speed reduction tends to take place the right before the point where right turn movement takes place, which is at the intersection location for shared case and near the taper or beginning of the turn lane when turn lanes are used. The speed reduction is also less when turn lanes are used. The space mean speed plots provided interesting insights. The pocket length of 480 ft seemed to be most effective among all turn lane lengths for low speed (30 mph) and low volume scenario (100 vph rate of flow). However, at higher speed and higher volume there is no perceptible difference in the impact. The delay is perceptibly less when using turn lane lengths; however, the effectiveness of different turn lane lengths is not that evident.

There are some interesting insights developed from the statistical models developed using data generated from simulation models. All models improved considerably compared to those developed using just field data. The models also provided a better basis for comparing different contexts in a consistent basis. The best improvement was in the vehicle delay model. These models together can provide a very good insight regarding the effectiveness of different turn lane lengths.

The models related to space mean speed, total vehicle delay (in vehicle-minutes), and average vehicle delay (seconds per vehicle) were found to be valid as $R^2_{jacknife}$ was less than R^2 of the fitted model and the MSE_{jackknife} was greater than the MSE of the fitted model (see Table 4.7).

4.4. Summary

There were numerous insights obtained from the development of simulation models and the analysis of results from simulation models. The development of simulation models required caution and care during calibration and validation. Over 2400 simulations were performed for calibration and validation proposes as well as for modeling different scenarios representing the broad range of conditions.

CHAPTER 5. CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

This chapter concludes the work of this thesis by presenting its key findings and significant contributions. It is underscored that the conclusions and the recommendations made herein are relevant mostly to right turn activity and the two-lane highway context where major roads have no controls, but many of the lessons are applicable and transferable to several other contexts involving right-turn activity.

5.1. Conclusions

5.1.1. Issues Related to Right-Turn Lanes

The ultimate decision for right turn lanes is based on operational, safety, access, and cost considerations, which makes it a multi-faceted problem. In general, data on approach volume, number of right turns in approach volume or percentage of right turning vehicles in approach volume, approach speed, speed differential, and type of right-turn treatments seem to impact the operational impact of right turning vehicles. Operational impacts due to right turning vehicles have been studied using field data analysis, analytical methods, simulation analysis, or a combination of these methods. The considerations for right turn lane when approach volume is less than 4000 AADT are not well understood or established. It is commonly perceived that at volumes below 4000 AADT, the impact of right-turning traffic does not impact through traffic. The warrants for right turn lane vary by states and bases for developing the warrants also differ. The analyses carried out in this research did find some significant differences in shared treatment and exclusive treatment for AADT less than 4000.

5.1.2. Field Data Collection and Analysis

This research analyzed in detail the impact on space mean speed of through vehicles, total delay of through vehicles, and vehicle delay to through vehicles. Space mean speed of through vehicles on the approach link leading to the intersection is impacted by speed, approach volume, percentage of right-turn vehicles in approach volume, pocket length, as well as interaction terms of pocket length and approach volume, and percentage right turn in approach volume and pocket length. It was interesting to see that percentage right turn and pocket length did not have significant probability values, but the overall model improved when the interaction terms (POC*VOL and POC*RT%) were introduced. The strength of relationship for space mean speed is strong and the signs do make sense. The space mean speed increases as posted speed increases and pocket length increases. The increase in right turn percentage decreases space mean speed.

Total delay to through vehicles on the approach link leading to the intersection is influenced by posted speed limit, approach volume, right turn volume, and pocket length. Total delay decreases with increasing posted speed limit. Total delay increases with increase in approach volume and right turn volume. Total delay decreases with increase in pocket length. The relationship of total delay was not as strong as was observed for space mean speed model.

Vehicle delay in seconds per vehicle is influenced by posted speed limit, approach volume, right turn volume, and pocket length. Vehicle delay decreases with increase in posted speed and increase in pocket length. Vehicle delay model was not as strong, but all variables included in the model were quite significant.

The models related to space mean speed, total vehicle delay (in vehicle-minutes), and average vehicle delay (seconds per vehicle) were found to be valid as $R^2_{jacknife}$ was less than R^2 of the fitted model and the MSE_{jackknife} was greater than the MSE of the fitted model. Nonetheless, these models needed improvement, which was possible using simulation model and related results.

5.1.3. Use of Simulation in Understanding Impacts

Spot speed profiles results provided how effective pocket lengths were. A pocket length was considered as zero for shared or radius treatment. The speed reduction is much more under shared context than in case of exclusive treatments. The effectiveness of the turn lane lengths is also evident from the spot speed profiles. The speed reduction tends to take place the right before the point where right turn movement takes place, which is at the intersection location for shared case and near the taper or beginning of the turn lane when turn lanes are used. The speed reduction is also less when turn lanes are used. The space mean speed plots provided interesting insights. The pocket length of 480 ft seemed to be most effective among all turn lane lengths for low speed (30 mph) and low volume scenario (100 vph rate of flow). However, at higher speed and higher volume there is no perceptible difference in the impact. The delay is perceptibly less when using turn lane lengths; however, the effectiveness of different turn lane lengths is not that evident.

There are some interesting insights developed from the statistical models developed using data generated from simulation models. All field data based models improved considerably when reanalyzed and developed using simulation generated data. The models also provided a better basis for comparing different contexts in a consistent basis. The best

improvement was in the vehicle delay model. These models together can provide a very good insight regarding the effectiveness of different turn lane lengths.

5.2. Recommendations

CORSIM[®] does not separate taper length and full width turn lane length, which doesn't allow one to model the effects the two lane lengths separately. Some of these concerns were potentially addressed in the calibration process in this research. However, enhancement of the CORSIM[®] program in this regard can help develop better understanding and potentially better results.

The justification of right-turn lanes shouldn't be solely dependent on the operational cost savings, as there are safety-related issues associated with it. There is also the cost related to construction and maintenance as well. Careful evaluation of all these aspects is recommended when making final decisions regarding the right turn lanes. The operational analyses and models developed in this research when combined with safety and cost analyses and modeling will help develop information for advancing further the knowledge and improving practice.

REFERENCES

- Ale, G. B. (2007). Analysis of Right-Turn Related Crashes and Safety Effectiveness of a Right-Turn Lane, Master's Thesis, North Dakota State University, Fargo, North Dakota.
- Alexander, M.H. (1970). Development of an Economic Warrant for the Construction of Right-Turn Deceleration Lanes. Final Report, Purdue University, Lafayette, IN.
- American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials (AASHTO). (2004). A Policy on Geometric Design of Highways and Streets, Washington, D.C.
- Benekohal, R.F. and Ayacin, M.F. (2001). "Stability and Performance of Car-Following Models in Congested Traffic." *Journal of transportation engineering*, American Society of Civil Engineers, Reston, VA, pp. 2-12.
- Benekohal, R.F., Elzohairy, Y.M., Saak, J.E. (2001). Comparison of Delays from HCM, SYNCHRO, PASSER II, PASSER IV and CORSIM for an Urban Arterial, Report No. UILU-ENG-2001-2005. Department of Civil Engineering, University of Illinois Urbana-Champaign, Urbana, IL.
- Bonneson, J.A. (1998). "Delay to Major-Street Through Vehicles due to Right-Turn Activity." *Transportation research part A: Policy and Practice*, Pergamon, New York, pp. 139-148.
- Bloomberg, L. and Dale, J. (2000). "A Comparison of the VISSIM and CORSIM Traffic Simulation Models on a Congested Network." *Transportation research record* 1727, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C., 52-60.
- Cottrell, B. H., Jr. (1981). The Development of Criteria for the Treatment of Right-Turn Movements on Rural Roads. Rep. No. VHTRC 81-R45, Virginia Highway and Transportation Research Council, Charlottesville, Virginia.
- Dowling, R., Skabardonis, A., and Alexiadis, V. (2004). Traffic Analysis Toolbox, Volume III: Guidelines for Applying Traffic Microsimulation Software. Rep. No. FHWA-HRT-04-040, Federal Highway Administration, Washington, D.C. http://ops.fhwa.dot.gov/trafficanalysistools/tat_vol3/Vol3_Guidelines.pdf (Jan. 16, 2007)

- Gafarian, A. V., and Halati, A. (1986). "Statistical Analysis of Output Ratios in Traffic Simulation." In *Transportation Research Record 1091*, Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, D.C., pp. 29-36.
- Gettman, D., Pu, L., Sayed, T., and Shelby, S. (2008). Surrogate Safety Assessment Model and Validation: Final Report. Rep. No. FHWA-HRT-08-051, Turner Fairbank Highway Research Center, Federal Highway Administration, McLean, Va.
- Gluck, J., Levinson, H. S., and Stover, V. (1999). Impacts of Access Management Techniques. NCHRP Rep. No. 420, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C.
- Hadi, M. A., and Thakkar, J. (2003). "Speed Differential as a Measure to Evaluate the Need for Right-Turn Deceleration Lanes at Unsignalized Intersections." *Transportation Research Record. 1847*, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C., 58-65.
- Harmelink, M.D. (1967). "Volume Warrants for Left Turn Storage Lanes at Unsignalized Grade Intersections." *Highway Research Record 211*, Highway Research Board, 11-19.
- Harwood, D.W., Bauer, K.M., Potts, I.B., Torbic, D.J., Richard, K.R., Kohlman-Rabbani, E.R., Hauer, E., and Elefteriadou, L. (2002). Safety Effectiveness of Intersection Left- and Right-Turn Lanes. Rep. No. FHWA-RD-02-089, Federal Highway Administration, McLean, Va.
- Hasan, T., and Stokes, R. W. (1996). Guidelines for Right-Turn Treatments at Unsignalized Intersections and Driveways: Final Report. Rep. No. K-TRAN: KSU-95-5, Kansas State University, Manhattan, Kansas.
- Iowa Department of Transportation (IADOT). (1995). Road Design Manual. < http://www.dot.state.ia.us/design/desman.html> (September 10, 2007)
- Institute for Transport Studies (ITS). (2000). *SMARTEST*, University of Leeds, GB. http://www.its.leeds.ac.uk/projects/smartest/finrep.PDF> (Dec. 31, 2010)
- McCoy, P. T., Ataullah, S., and Bonneson, J. A. (1993). Guidelines for Right-Turn Lanes on Urban Highways: Final Report. Research Rep. No. TRP-02-28-92, Department of Civil Engineering, University of Nebraska, Lincoln.

- McCoy, P. T., and Bonneson, J. A. (1996). "Volume Warrant for Free Right-Turn Lanes at Unsignalized Intersections on Rural Two-Lane Highways." *Transportation Research Record 1523*, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C., 83-90
- McCoy, P. T., Hoppe, W. J., and Dvorak, D. V. (1984). Cost-Effectiveness Evaluation of Turning Lanes on Uncontrolled Approaches of Rural Intersections: Final Report. Research Rep. No. TRP-02-15-84, Department of Civil Engineering, University of Nebraska, Lincoln.
- McGee, H., Taori, S., and Persaud, B. N. (2003). Crash Experience Warrant for Traffic Signals. NCHRP Rep. No. 491, National Cooperative Highway Research Program, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C. http://onlinepubs.trb.org/Onlinepubs/nchrp/nchrp_rpt_491.pdf> (Jan. 14, 2010)
- Mendenhall, W., and Sincich, T. (2003). A Second Course in Statistics Regression Analysis, 6th Ed., Pearson-Prentice Hall, Upper Saddle River, NJ.
- Minnesota Department of Transportation (MN DOT) (2000). *Road Design Manual* <<u>http://www.dot.state.mn.us/tecsup/rdm/index.html</u>>(August 28, 2010)
- Moen, B., Fitts, J., Carter, D., Ouyang, Y. (2000). "Comparison of VISSIM Model to Other Widely Used Traffic Simulation and Analysis Programs" *Proc. of 2000 ITE Annual Meeting*, Institute of Transportation Engineers (ITE), Virginia.
- Mounce, J. M. (1983). "Influence of Arterial Access Control and Driveway Design on Energy Conservation." In *Transportation Research Record 901*, Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, D.C., pp. 42-46.
- North Dakota Department of Transportation. (2004). *Road Design Manual* < http://www.dot.nd.gov/designmanual.html> (September 10, 2010)
- Neuman, T. R. (1985). Intersection Channelization Design Guide. NCHRP Rep. No. 279, National Cooperative Highway Research Program, Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, D.C.
- Neuman, T. R., Pfefer, R., Slack, K. L., Hardy, K. K., Harwood, D. W., Potts, I. B., Torbic, D. J., and Kohlman-Rabbani, E. R. (2003). Guidance for Implementation of the AASHTO Strategic Highway Safety Plan, Vol. 5: A Guide for Addressing Unsignalized Intersection Collisions. NCHRP Rep. No. 500, National Cooperative

Highway Research Program, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C. http://onlinepubs.trb.org/Onlinepubs/nchrp/nchrp_rpt_500v5.pdf (Jan. 12, 2010)

- Sacks, J., Rouphail N. M., Park, B., Thakuriah P. (2002). "Statistically-Based Validation of Computer Simulation Models in Traffic Operations and Management." *Journal of Transportation and Statistics*, Bureau of Transportation Statistics, USDOT, Washington, D.C., pp. 1-24.
- Siddiqui, N.U. (2003). Methods for Calibrating and Validating StochasticMicro-Simulation Traffic Models, M.S. Thesis submitted to North Carolina State University, Raleigh, NC.
- Solomon, D. (1964). Accidents on Main Rural Highways Related to Speed, Driver, and Vehicle, U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Public Roads, Washington, DC.
- South Dakota Department of Transportation (SD DOT). (2007). Road Design Manual. http://www.sddot.com/pe/roaddesign/docs/rdmanual/preface.pdf (September 10, 2010)
- Stover, V.G., Adkins, W.G., and Goodknight, J.C. (1970). Guidelines for Medial and Marginal Access Control on Major Roadways. NCHRP Report 93. Transportation Research Board, National Research Council, Washington, D.C.
- Stover, V. G. (1996a). Discussion Paper Number 10: Left-Turn Bays, Oregon Department of Transportation, Salem, Oregon.
- Stover, V.G. (1996b). Discussion Paper Number 11: Right-Turn Bays, Oregon Department of Transportation, Salem, Oregon.
- Varma, A., Ale, G. B., Gyawali, S., Chevuri, P., and Hagel, S. (2008). Warrants for Right-Turn Lanes/Treatments on Two-Lane Roads. Rep. No. MN/RC 2008-25, Minnesota Department of Transportation, St. Paul, Minnesota.
- Wolfe, F. A., and Lane, W. (2000). "Effect of Radius of Curvature for Right-Turning Vehicles on Through Traffic Delay." Proc., 4th International Symposium on Highway Capacity, Transportation Research Circular E-C018, Transportation Research Board, Washington, D.C., pp 388-396.

Wolfe, F. A., and Piro, J. (2003). *Delay to Through Vehicles due to Right-Turn Activity*. Department of Civil Engineering, Union College, Schenectady, NY.

APPENDIX A. SAMPLE CORSIM INPUT

							Sa	mple	C0	กราค เ	file	.trf							
Creat	ted t	by Ti	SIS	ion _	Jun 2	0 ZO	:07:	02 20	11	from	TNO	Ver	sior	1 65		e 7 9			
12345	3673 No 24	1 Z.	3456.	(8 Z	234:	6/8	5 2 5	456/8	4	2345	6/3 . 811No	3 23: arth	4367 51	0 6	2345	0/0	42	3430/	,
Anty	var	na o	n	10		8321	001	0 1	ь	192	UTIN	21.	UAP 147	COLA	5141	.e 00 119	TV.	357	2
900	-	Ű	U	10		0521	001	• I				21			13				à
300		1		60															4
0		0	0	0	0	o	0	0	Q	0	1	0							5
1	6	402			l	01			1	3002				20	15	30	0		11
2	31	1000			1	01			1	8001				20	18	30	0		11
1	4	995			1	01				8004				20	15	30	Ö		11
1	2	501			1	01			1	2003				20	18	30	ñ		11
1	ĩ	200			1	01			5	2	6		7	20	18	30	ō		11
6	ī	402			1	01			4	ŝ	ž		5	20	19	30	õ		11
5	1	402			1	01			2	6	4		6	20	15	30	0		11
2	1	800			1	01			6	4	5		4	20	18	30	0		11
3	2	1000			1	01				1				20	18	30	0		11
8001	5				1	01				2				20	18		0		11
8002	6				1	01				ī				20	18		ă		11
8003	5				ī	01				ĩ				zo	15		ŏ		11
1	6		100																21
2	3		100																Z1
1	4		100																21
1	2		100																21
L L	1	a	33	33	D														21
6	î	33	33	33	ō														21
5	1	33	33	33	0														21
2	1	0	. 99	01	0														21
3	2		100																21
8001	د م		100																21
8002	6		100																21
8003	ŝ		100																21
1		4	6	5	2														35
2		1	3																35
3		23	5001																22
		11	8004																35
6		- î	6002																35
1	1551	L																	36
Z	11																		36
3	11																		36
4	11																		36
2	11																		36
1		9	8	5950	14	11	20	0											42
2	i	9	3	3000	21	3	20	0											42
2	1	9	2	2000	2 1	. Z	20	0											42
2	1	9		ò	21	1	20	0											42
3	2	9		1000	32	1	20	0											42
5002	É	6	ົດ	0	100)	20	~											50
8001	3	5	ŏ	ŏ	100)													\$0
8004	4	0	0	Ó	100)													50
8003	5	0	0	0	100)												-	50
8001	3	25	7		-	10				-								0	53
3	10		5	10	5	10	12	25	Z	8	50	20	50	300	15			,	81 140
~															τ 2			-	170
8002	1	1699	L.	1005														1	195
8001	-	0		516														2	195
									Pi	age 1									

			Sample corsim file.trf	
8004	2979	484		195
8003	1695	0		195
1	1692	494		195
2	1191	495		195
3	191	496		195
4	2687	496		195
5	1695	92		195
6	1683	896		195
ĩ	0 0			2 10

APPENDIX B. SAMPLE CORSIM OUTPUT

DMFFFFLE NAME: C:\TELES2 Projects\Sharadhultirums\ShuphSoluphSolup trf Aux extt : 06/22/31



| | | |
 | | , | High OF
 | U.
TEE OF

 | TRAJ
S. DEPAI
FEOFRAL >
OPERATION | STHUL
NEVELOPI
THENT
IZGHMAY
IS NESE | ATION
ED FOR
OF TRA
ADMIN
ARCH,
 | MODEL
NSPORTAT
ITSTRATTC
DEVELOPH | TION
Ph
RENT AND | TECHNOL OG | τ γ
 | | | | |
--	---	---
--

--
--	--	--
---	---	--
1 0		
 | | |
 |

 | | | | |
 | | | |
 | | | | |
| 0
0 | | |
 | | |
 |

 | USER - AN | ity Var | na
kotm S
 | itate Moi | iv | |
 | | | | |
| Ð | | | v
 | ALUE
J
1 | RUN I
RUN T | DENTLE
YPE CO
 | ICATION
DE = (]
(-)

 | RUN
RUN PARJ
NUMBER
L. 2. 30 1
L2. 33 1 | CONTROL
WETERS | L DATA
AND D
(SDHUL
K (STH
 | ATION, A | ASSIGNME | NT, BOTH)
MENT, BOTH | 1) DNL
 | r | | | |
| | | |
 | U C | NETS I | FNISSI
 | KINHENTA

 | TABLES A | te NKTT I | PRINTE
 | ō | 510 | | 100.00
 | | <i>Ch. Cu.</i> | | |
| | | |
 | 220 | CODE
CODE
TNITI | TABLES
- [0
- [1
 | - PERPOR
- EMBEDO
1,2) PC
- 9) U1
- 9) U1
- 90 U1

 | NED
NED
NED IN ERA
HED IN ERA
I (0 1) = | DISTR
MG DI |
 | TION | TRA
TRA
UL DISTR | TALIZATION, E | LET
 | 011971
011971
LCID | NOT WEI | TTEN | |
| | | |
 | 0
0
1447
0 | INPUT
OUTPL
CLOCK | UNIT
T UNIT
 | CODE -

 | (0.1) I
(0.1,2,
OF STHUE | INPUT
1) IF OF
ATION
1,2,3) | 15 IN
UTPUT
(HHHH)
IF(HO
 | ENGLIS | LANE AS | IC) UNITS
INPUT, FNC
CYCLE, 3 C | UZSH.
TYCLED
 | HETR:
TRANS | С. ЮТ Ч)
(ITION W | UNITS | D |
| | | | 4145)
6799)
9716)
 | 6712
9630
9909
900 | RANDO
RANDO
BANDO
DURAT | n wimb
n wimb
n wimb
10% (Si
 | ER SEED
ER SEED
ER SEED
ER SEED
EC) OF 1

 | TO GENERA
TO GENERA
THE PERIO | TE TILA
TE EMIS | FFIC S
 | TREAM FO | NR NETST | N OR LEVEL
TSIN SIMU | I SD
ATION
 | AUL ATT | CON . | | |
| | | |
 | 60
10
0
0 | LENGT
MAXIN
NUMBE
TIME | N OF A
UN INT
A OF T
INTERM
 | TIME IN
TALIZAT
THE INTE

 | TERVAL STINE | LECOMDS
MEEN SI
LE REGI | N OF T
 | THE INTE | ERVALS
EDARD OU | TPUTS
0 SECS. FO | ML I
 | SEC: | . FOR MI | CROSCOPIC | NOCEL S |
| | •••• | • • • • • • • • | ••••
 | •••• | NETSI | W NOVF
 | TI

 | NE PERIO | τυτ co | NETSI
 | 0,1) (1
M DATA | NOT, I | E2.REQUEST | ED FOI
 | 5, NET1 | TH SUBAR | ThORK | ••••• |
| 1 | | |
 | -LANES | | -CHA
 | MEL -

 | | NETSIN | LINKS
 | | | |
 | | | | |
| LINK | | LENGT | H
 | F
U
L PKT
L L R | GRD LIN
PCT TYP | с
1)
14 R
14 В.У
 | 1567 LE

 | HESTINATIO | IN NODE | OPP
NG YOD
 | LOST
TIME
SEC | Q DIS
HOWY.
SEC | FREF
SPFED
WPH/KMPH | RTOR
 | PEC
CODE | LANE
ALTON
NENT | STREET | |
| | 6)) Q) | 402/
1000/
995/ | 123
305
303
 | 100 | 0 1
0 1
0 1 | 000
000
000
 | 0000

 | 0 8002
0 8001
0 8004 | 0 | 000
 | 0 2.0
0 2.0
0 2.0 | 1.8
1.8
1.8 | 30/ 48
30/ 48
30/ 48 | 0000
 | 0000 | 1-1*
1-1*
1-1* | | |
| 4.6. | 1222 | 402/
995/
402/ | 113
 | 100 | 0 1 | 000
 | 0000

 | 0 3 | 0
6
2 | 0000
 | 0 2.0
2 2.0
5 2.0 | 1.8 | 30/ 48
30/ 48
30/ 48 | 0000
 | 0000 | 1-1*
1-1*
1-1* | | |
| (8091, | 822 | 1027
1021/
1020/
0/ | 153
305
0
 | 100 | | 000
 | 9000
9000

 | 6 4
0 1
0 / | 500 | 00000
 | 4 2.0 | 1.8 | 30/ 48
30/ 48
30/ 48
9/ 0 | 1000
 | 0000 | 1 17 | | |
| (8004,
(8007,
(8003, | 4)
5)
5) | 0/
0/ | 0
 | 100 | 0 1
0 1 | 000
 | 0000

 | 0 1 | 0 | 0
 | 0 2.0
0 2.0
0 2.0 | 1.8
1.8
1.8 | 0/ 0
0/ 0 | 000
 | 0
0 | 11, | | |
| | | |
 | | |
 | * IND1

 | CATES DEP | AULT V | NL UES
 | WERE SAE | CIFIED | | |
 | | | | |
| | | |
 | | |
 |

 | | | | |
 | | | |
 | | | | |
| IDFI
QISTR
QUEUE
START
CHARA | LIN
NTIFI
IBUTI
DISC
-UP L
CTERI | TYPE
(ES THI
CON USE
MARGE
COST TI
ISTICS. | F
ED FO
AND
THE
 | iș. | | NE CHA
O
UNREST
DUSES
LEFT T
DUSES
CLOSED
RIGHT
 | INELIZAT
DES
RICTED
JRNS ONLY
TURNS ON

 | 'IDN
.Y
4.Y | 0 | ютя
отя
 | RTOR
CODES
R PERMIT
R PROHIE | TED
ITTD | 0 | PFDES
CO
VQ PED
LIGHT
HODERA
HEAVY
 | TRIAN
DES
ESTRII
TIE | W(S | | |
| IDF
OISTR
QUEUE
START
CHARA | LIN
MTIFI
DISC
-UP L
CTERI | TYPE
(ES. THI
(QN USE
DAMOE
OST TI
(STICS) | F
ED FO
AND
THE
 | 9A | 2
2
2
2
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
2
1 | INE CHA
UNREST
LEFT T
DUSES
CLOSED
CLOSED
CLOSED
CAR - 1
CAR -
 | UNELIZAT
DDES
RICTED
JRNS ON
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
BUITTED
DMETRY J
AL TRAFT

 | TON
Y
BUSES
RIGHT DIA
FFT DIACE
NOVENENTS
NO ADJACE
IC ONLY | GONAL A
NAL ANC
WITH P |) ATO
ATO
/ ATO
/OR TI
JSPEC
: CHAN/ | RTOR
CODES
R PERNTT
R PROHTB
THROUGH
HROUGH
T TD
HELTZATTI
 | TED
ITTD | 0 1 1
2 4
3 4 | PFDES
CO
VQ PED
JGHT
HODERA
HEAVY | TRIAN
DES
ESTRIJ | wi s
 | | |
| TDF
OTSTR
Queue
Start
Chara | L 1 M
HTTF1
1 BUT1
DISC
- UP L
CTTR1 | TYPE
(ES THI
INN US)
MARGE
(SST TICS)
TOTAL | F
ED FO
AND
THE
L IAK
 | ар
15.1 - 5
25.1 - 5 | LJ
D
3
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
D
T
4
NODES; | INE CHAN
O
UNREST
LEFT T
LUSTS -
CAR -
LEFT T
LEFT T
ALL PE
DIACON
THE GE
DIACON
6 (A
 | UNELIZAT
DES
RICTED
JUNS ON
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS

 | TON
Y
LY
RIGHT DIA
FFT DIACC
NOVENENTS
NO ADJACE
TC ONLY
B9993) | GONAL A
NAL AND
WITH A
NT LANE |) RTO
L RTO
VOR TI
USPEC
E CHAN | RTOR
CODES
R PERMIT
R PROHIB
THROUCH
HROUCH
T TO
NEL TZATI
 | TED
ITTD | 0 •
1
2 • | PFDES
CO
VQ PEDI
JGHT
NODERA
(EAV) | TRIAN
CES
ESTRIJ | WS
 | | |
| IDF
OISTR
Quêue
Start
Chara | LING
LING
LING
LING
LING
LING
LING | TOTAL | ED FO
AND
THE
 | а
5: 3
\$чтяч | L2
Q
3
3
4
5
5
7
8
9
7
7
9
9
7
7
7
9
9
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7 | LEFT T
DUSES
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
THE GRI
THE GRI
THE GRI
CIACON
THE GRI
CIACON
CIACON
 | HNELIZAT
DDES
RICTED
JUENS ON
POOLS -
TURNS OF
POOLS -
TURNS -
HITTED
JMETRY A
L TRAFFI
LLOWED-
NE

 | TON
Y
BUSES
RIGHT DIA
RIGHT DIA
RIGHT DIA
RIGHT DIA
RIGHT DIA
NO ADACE
IC ONLY
C ONLY
S 999)
TSIN TURN | GONAL A
NAL AND
WITH A
NT LANE
ING MON | ALL ALLO
ALL ALLO
ALL ALLO
ALLO
ALLO
ALL
 | RTOR
CODES
R PERMIT
R PROHTB
THROUCH
HROUGH
T TO
NELTZATI)
OATA | TED
ITTD | 0 | PFDES
CO
VQ PED
IGHT
HODERA
HEAVY
 | TRIAN
GES
ESTRJI
TE | WIS | | |
| IDFI
DISTR
GIRVE
START
CHARGA | LINN
NTIFI
JIBUTI
DISC
CTERI | TOTAL | F FO FO
AND
THE
 | а
5: 5
84 та
108
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
198
19 | L/
C
1
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
7
8
9
7
7
8
9
7
7
8
9
7
7
8
9
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
7
7
8
9
8
9
7
7
8
9
8
9
7
7
8
9
8
9
7
7
8
9
8
9
7
7
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
9
8
9
8
9
8
9
9
8
9
9
9
9
9
8
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9 | INE CHA
O
UNREST T
ILISES
ILISES
CAR - I
IEFT T
IEFT T
IEFT T
IEFT T
THEOR
DIACON
6 (A
ST PER
ST PER
ST PER
 | HARLIZAT
DDES
RICTED
JANS CHI
DALY
DALY
DOLS
DOLS
DOLS
DOLS
DOLS
DOLS
DOLS
DOLS

 | TON
Y
BUSES
BITONT DIACC
BETT DIACC
MOVEMENTS
ND ADJACE
TS ONLY
BU999)
TSEN TURN
L | GONAL A
NAL AND
WITH A
NT LANE
JAG MON
LEFT J
NO | AND/OR TI
UND/OR
TI
USPECT
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHANF
CHA | RTOR
CODES
R PERNIT
R PRONTB
THROUCH
HIROUCH
HIROUCH
NELTZATI
OATA
MENT POS-
HIRIGHT (
NO | TED
ITTD
Ons
STBLF
DIACONAL | 0
1
2
3
 | PFDES
CO
CO
CO
IGGT
HODERA
HEAVY
HEAVY | TRIAN
DES
ESTRIA
TE | 4 (IN FFF
RI
9/ | T/WETTERS)
CAT
2 | |
| IDF
OISTR
GNEUE
STARA
CHARA
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.) | LINN
WTIFI
IDUTS
DISC
UP L
CTERI
3)
41
51
51
51 | TYPE
(ES THI
ION US)
DUARGE
COST FI
ISTICS. | F
ED FO
THE
 | S; ; ;
5≪ТКу
1000
1500
000
000
000 | L/
D
1
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
9
D
T
4
000FS;
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0 | ALE CHAN
OUNREST T
LEFT T
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
CAR - I
DIACOM
THROUG
6 (A
ST PER
C D
2.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
0.0
 | UNELIZAT
DDES
TLIBNS ON
POOLS -
TUBNS ON
POOLS -
TUBNS ON
POOLS -
TUBNS - L
BNITTED
DNETH -
NETH -
TRAFF
-
TRAFF
-
DIACON
0,0
0,0
0,0
0,0

 | 10N
Y
8USES
8100HT DJA
8100HT DJA
917 DJAS
917 DJAS
917 DJAS
91999)
1553H TURN
1 | GONAL A
NAL AND
WITH A
NT LANE
ILEFT I
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO |) RTOI
L RTOI
L RTOI
L RTOI
L RTOI
NOVES
- CHANI
- ROVES
- VES
- VES
- VES
- VES
- VES
- VES
 | РТОВ
СОДЕ
СОДЕ
СОДЕ
К
РЕФИТТ
РЕФИТТ
ТИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НИКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИСИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОСОН
НОСОНО
НОКОНО
НОКОНО
НОКОИ
НОКОИ
НОСОН | TED
ITTED
OnS
STBLE
DIAGONAL
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO | 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 | PF DES'
COU
IGHT
HODERA
HEAVY
SCRET I
LEI
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
 | TRIAN
DES
ESTRII
TE
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | (IN FFF
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/ | T/WETTERS)
CMT
0
0
2
2 | |
| LT
QI STR
QI STR
START
CHARA
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(5.)) | K
61
61
61
61
61
61
61
61
61
61 | TYPE
(ES THI
CON USI
DARCE
COST TI
STICS:
TOTAL | F FO FO
AND
THE
 | 3: 1
δ τ τμα
δ τ τ τμα
δ τ τ τμα
δ | L ^J
Q
1
3
4
6
6
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7 | LEFT TI
HUSES -
TLOSED T
CAR -
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
HE GE
THE GE
CAR -
CAR -
CAR -
LEFT TI
LEFT TI
 | UNAL LIZAT
DES
RICTED
DIRNS ON
DOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POOLS
POO
 | 'IDN
Y
ALY
BUSES
RIGHT DIA
FFT DIAC
NGVENHINTS
NG ADJACC GNLY
(GNLY
B999)
TSIN TURN
L
 | GONAL A
NAL AAC
WITH P
INT LANE
JNG MO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO |) RTCJ
HOTR
HOTR
JOR TI
JOR TI
JOR TI
HANJ
HESPEC
HANJ
HESPEC
HANJ
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPEC
HESPE | РТОВ
СОДЕЗ
СОДЕЗ
R РЕВИТТ
R РКОНТВ
THROUCH
THROUCH
T TO
T TO
T TO
VEL TZATI
NO
NO
STA
NO
NO
STA
NO
STA
NO
STA
NO
STA
STA
STA
STA
STA
STA
STA
STA
STA
STA
 | TED
ITTED
ONS
STBLE
DIACONAL
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO | 0 1
1 4
3 4 | PF DES
COU
IGAT
IGAT
ERAY
ERAY
ERAY
ERAY
ERAY | TRIAN
DES
ESTRIJ
TE
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | (IN FFE
8 (IN FFE
9/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/
3/ | T/WETTERS)
CMT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| торг
отвят
онво-
сная-
сная-
сная-
с
1.
(
1.
(
1.
(
1.
(
1.
(
1.
(
1.
(
1. | K
51
51
51
51
51
51
11
11
11
11 | TYPE
TES THI
TOTAL
TOTAL
TOTAL | F
ED FO
ANC
THE
 | ЧА
5.: 5
Стиркта,
с рага,
5.: 5
с о
с о
с о
с о
с о
с о
с о
с о | L ⁴
C
1
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
2
7
8
9
9
2
7
8
9
9
2
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
9
7
7
8
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9
9 | INF CALL CUMREST ILEFT ILEFT ILE
 |
UNELIZAZ
SDES
STICTED
SDES
STICTED
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
SDES
 | 10
γ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ
μ | CONAL A
CONAL A
INC POC
INC PO |) RTOI
L RTOI
VOID THE STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
STOCK
S | RTOR CGOES CGOES R R PERMIT R R PERMIT R THROLOGI R THROLOGI R MEDUGH R OATA NO NO NO NO NO NO NO NTS YES YES NO NO NO
 | TED
ITTED
ONS
STELF
DIACONAL
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO | 0 1 1
1 1
3 • | PF DES
00 CFED
1G4T
00 FRA
1G4T
00 FRA
1G4T
00 FRA
00 | TRIAN
DES
SETRIJ
TE
00000000000000000000000000000000000 | (IN FFE
AI
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/ | T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| TOPI
OTSTR
GNEUE
START
GNARA
(1,
(1,
(1,
(1,
(1,
(1,
(1,
(1, | LINN
NUTIFI
IBUTI
LIPIL
CTTRAJ
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1) | TYPE
LES TWIN
HARGE
COST TI
ISTICS | ED FO
ANO
NOE
 | 3. 1
δ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ τ | 14
0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | NE CHAN
O UNREST.
BUSED
LIGHT T
BUSED
LIGHT T
BUSED
LIGHT T
RIGHT
CAR - COR
CAR - COR
CAR - COR
CAR - COR
CAR - COR
CAR - COR
COR
COR
COR
COR
COR
COR
COR
COR
COR
 |
UNELIZAT
SUBSIS
RICTID
SUBSIS
RICTID
SUBSIS
RICTID
SUBSIS
RICTID
SUBSIS
RICTID
SUBSIS
RICTID
SUBSIS
RICTID
RICS
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
RICTID
 | 10% 07 54 | WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
WO
W |) 810)
1 810
1 | РТОЯ
СОДЕ:
СОДЕ:
СОДЕ:
СОДЕ:
R
PRONTE
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON
HROLCON | TED
TTTDO
0~5
5781.9
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO | 0
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | PFDES
CO
CO
IDST
INDERA
INDERA
IDST
IDST
INDERA
IDST
IDST
IDST
IDST
IDST
IDST
IDST
IDST | EF CAT | (TH FFE)
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
37
 | T/VETTERS)
CLAT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| торг
Отбят
Онбло
Start
Снава
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1. | LINN
NTIFI
DIS
-UP L
CTTRI
(
3)
41
3)
11
11
11
11
11
11
11
2)
3
3
41
5
5
5
5
5
5 | TTTPF
IES THIS
DARGE
CST TI
STICS
TOTAL | F FO
ED FO
AND
THE
 | S: 1
S: 1
LFF U
0 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 0
3 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 | L
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C | LET T
BUILDE
LET T
BUILDE
LET T
BUILDE
LET T
LET T
 | NUELIZAT
DOES
DITO
DOES
DITO
DUENS
OCLS
DITO
DUENS
OCLS
DITO
DUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
NUENS
 |
TON
Y
BUSES
FOUNDATE
FOUNDATE
FOUNDATE
FOUNDATE
FOUNDATE
BUSES
FOUNDATE
BUSES
TECHTURN
L
IOW OF SU
LIST | WACE NOT THE STATE |) RTOI
I RTOI
AG/OR T
VOR T
VESPECT
CHAN
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES | толя
толя
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
кодентт
коде
 | 11170
0%5
5181.8
0%5
100
0%5
100
0%5
0%5
0%5
0%5
0%5
0%5
0%5
0%5
0%5
0 | 0 1 1
1 1
3 * | PF DES
COD
COD
IGAT
IGAT
IGAT
IGAT
IGAT
IGAT
IGAT
IGAT | TRIAN
CES
ESTRJ/
TE
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | * (IM FFE
* (IM FFE
*)
*)
*)
*)
*)
*)
*)
*) | T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| IDF
DISTR
GUEDE
START
CHARA
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1) | L 1 MB
IBUTI FI
IBUTI FI
CTTRI
(TTRI)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1 | TYPE
LES THIS
HARGE
COST TI
STICS
TOTAL | F FO
ED FO
AND
THE
 | 3: 1
TURE
LFFT
C U
0 0 0
0 0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | ц,
0
1
3
4
4
3
4
4
5
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7
7 | LIVE CHAR
UNREST:
LIUTTET
LIUTET
LIUTTET
LIUTTET
LIUTTET
LIUTTET
LIUTTET
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
LIUTTE
 | NURLIZAT
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIST
DIS

 | TON Y
Y
BUSES
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO DIA
BEOTO SU
COMUT
SU
COMUT
BEOTO SU
COMUT
BEOTO SU
BEOTO SU
BEOT | ()
COMPT 1
COMPT 1 | AND IN THE INFORMATION INTERVALUE INTO INTERVALUE | CODE | TED
ITTD
ONS
STBL #
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO | 0 1 1
1 1
3 * | PF DES:
COI
COI
SCRT
PODERA:
DOCKET :
LEI
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
O/
 | TRIAN
DES
ESTRJ/
TE
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | • (IN FFF
*(IN FFF
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/
0/ | T/VETERS)
COT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| IDF
DISTR
GUEUE
START
CHARA
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1. | K
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Silver
Sil | TYPE
FES THI
DUMME
SUDUME
STICS | ED FOO
TIME | A
3
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4
4 | L2
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C
C | LIFT LIFT LIFT <td>04112A
11770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700</td> <td>TON Y
Y
BUSES
BUSES
BOOTDIALS
BOOTDIALS
BOOTDIALS
TCORLY
CORLY
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L</td> <td>GONAL A
GONAL AA
UTH J
UTH J
U</td> <td>) RTON
L RTON
VOR TI
LESPEC :
CHANN
VERE -
T
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES</td> <td>TODA 5 CODI 5 CODI 5 CODI 5 CODI 6 CODI 6</td> <td>TED
TTTD
045
51819
045
174004
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO</td> <td>0 1 L
1 L
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N</td> <td>PF COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD</td> <td>TR LAN.
ESTR J.
ESTR J.
TE
0000000000000000000000000000000000</td> <td>• (IM FFFF)
• (IM FFF)
• (IM FFFF)
• (IM FFFFF)
• (IM FFFF)
•</td> <td>T/NETTERS)
COTT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0</td> <td></td> | 04112A
11770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
14770
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700
147700 | TON Y
Y
BUSES
BUSES
BOOTDIALS
BOOTDIALS
BOOTDIALS
TCORLY
CORLY
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L
TSIN TURN
L | GONAL A
GONAL AA
UTH J
UTH J
U |) RTON
L RTON
VOR TI
LESPEC :
CHANN
VERE -
T
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES
VES | TODA 5 CODI 5 CODI 5 CODI 5 CODI 6 | TED
TTTD
045
51819
045
174004
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO
NO | 0 1 L
1 L
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N
1 N | PF COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD
COD | TR LAN.
ESTR J.
ESTR J.
TE
0000000000000000000000000000000000 | • (IM FFFF)
• (IM FFF)
• (IM FFFF)
• (IM FFFFF)
• (IM FFFF)
• | T/NETTERS)
COTT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| TOPI
OTSTR
GNEUE
START
CHARA
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1.
(1. | K
5)
100
005
005
005
005
005
005
005 | TYPE
[ES THI
CON USE
DOST T
STTCS.
TOTAL | E FO
ANO
THE
 | A
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L L | NE CALC UNRET T CLEFT LEFT CLERT LINER CLERT LINER CAR LI
 | SALE 12A-1
SALE 1
SALE 1
SALE 1
JACK 10
JACK 10
NOLS -
COLS -
COL
 | XKK AGO (NEK AGO (NEK AGO (NEK AGO (NEK AGO)))
 | CONAL A
No. AND
NO. AND
INC. MON.
INC. MON.
NO.
NO.
NO.
NO.
NO.
NO.
NO.
NO.
NO. | AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD/OR
AD | TODA CODE
 | TED
ITTD
0+S
51819
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
00-S
0 | 0 1 1
1 1
3 s
men services
men services
men services
men services
men services
men services
men services
men services | PF COD
VG 2000FFF | TRIAN
DES
ESTRIJ
TE
00000000000000000000000000000000000 | (IN PPE)
(IN PPE) | T/VETTERS)
CLT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| LT4
GNE92
START
GNARA
(ARAA)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1)
(1 | LING
WFTF71
DIST
DIST
DIST
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTFR1
CTF | TYPE
(ES THI
CON USING
COST TI
STICS) | E FO FO
AND
IME | A
3: 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | L/
Q
Q
J
J
J
Q
Q
Z
V
Q
Q
Z
Q
Q
Z
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q
Q | NE CALA LEFT T LEFT T SUSES LARTOT RECOT THEORE CAR THEORE GAR THEORE GAR THEORE GAR THEORE GAR GAR THEORE GAR | NULLIZAT JOSETID JOSETID <tr td=""> <td>TON Y
HUSES IN TURN
FOUNDATION OF SU
FOUNDATION OF SU
TSIN TURN
L
TON OF SU
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FO</td><td>CONAL &
CONAL &
CONAL</td><td>) #TO/
I #TO/
I #TO/
/GR T/
/GR T/
/BME \T
/BME \T</td><td>PTOR STOR PTOR REQUINT POS MEDUCH MEDUCH MEDUCH RECHT MEDUCH RECHT <!--</td--><td>TED
TTTD
TTTD
Cris
STBL #
DTACCH4L
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO</td><td>0 1 1
1 1
2 1
3 1
3 1
1
3 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1</td><td>PF DECO
UL IGHT
UL IGHT
UL</td><td>TRIAN DES 1000000000000000000000000000000000000</td><td>* (IN FFE X)</td><td>T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0</td><td></td></td></tr> | TON Y
HUSES IN TURN
FOUNDATION OF SU
FOUNDATION OF SU
TSIN TURN
L
TON OF SU
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FO | CONAL &
CONAL |) #TO/
I #TO/
I #TO/
/GR T/
/GR T/
/BME \T
/BME \T | PTOR STOR PTOR REQUINT POS MEDUCH MEDUCH MEDUCH RECHT MEDUCH RECHT </td <td>TED
TTTD
TTTD
Cris
STBL #
DTACCH4L
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO</td> <td>0 1 1
1 1
2 1
3 1
3 1
1
3 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1</td> <td>PF DECO
UL IGHT
UL IGHT
UL</td> <td>TRIAN DES 1000000000000000000000000000000000000</td> <td>* (IN FFE X)</td> <td>T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0</td> <td></td> | TED
TTTD
TTTD
Cris
STBL #
DTACCH4L
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO | 0 1 1
1 1
2 1
3 1
3 1
1
3 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | PF DECO
UL IGHT
UL | TRIAN DES 1000000000000000000000000000000000000 | * (IN FFE X) | T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | |
| TON Y
HUSES IN TURN
FOUNDATION OF SU
FOUNDATION OF SU
TSIN TURN
L
TON OF SU
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
TRAIL
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FOUNDATION
FO | CONAL &
CONAL |) #TO/
I #TO/
I #TO/
/GR T/
/GR T/
/BME \T
/BME \T | PTOR STOR PTOR REQUINT POS MEDUCH MEDUCH MEDUCH RECHT MEDUCH RECHT </td <td>TED
TTTD
TTTD
Cris
STBL #
DTACCH4L
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO</td> <td>0 1 1
1 1
2 1
3 1
3 1
1
3 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1</td> <td>PF DECO
UL IGHT
UL IGHT
UL</td> <td>TRIAN DES 1000000000000000000000000000000000000</td> <td>* (IN FFE X)</td> <td>T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0</td> <td></td> | TED
TTTD
TTTD
Cris
STBL #
DTACCH4L
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO
HO | 0 1 1
1 1
2 1
3 1
3 1
1
3 1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1
1 | PF DECO
UL IGHT
UL
 | TRIAN DES 1000000000000000000000000000000000000

 | * (IN FFE X) | T/WETTERS)
CATT
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0 | | |
 | | | |
 | | | | |

		HETSIN VEHI	CLE TY	PE SPECIF	TCATIO	-5			
VEHICLE TYPE 195 31- 41- 51- 51- 51- 51- 71- 81- 91- 81- 91- 91- 91- 91- 91- 91- 91- 91- 91- 9	LFNGTN FFFT/WHTERS 16.0/4.9 35.0/10.7 16.0/4.9 40.0/12.2 14.0/4.3 53.0/16.2 53.0/16.2 64.0/19.5 14.0/4.3 ** INDICATES T	Q 05CHC HDWY FACTOR (PCT) 120 120 120 120 120 120 120 120 120 120	AVG 2 RS FOR	. OCCUP. 1.3 1.2 2.5 5.0 1.3 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2 VEHICLE	FLEE AUTO 75 0 0 25 0 0 0 0 7 7 9 0 0 0 0 0 7 7 9 0 0 0 0 7 9 0 0 0 0	CONPON TILIC 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	IENT PER CARM 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	28 4T AGES DOL 8445 0 0 100 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	PERF. 7 KODR 7 3 7 7 1 4 5 6 1
		DE FAIR, T	LINK	GEOWETRI	C DAT	k			
		WIDTH OF LANES				12 1			
		LONGITUDINAL DIS	CURB	FROM THE	STOP	4 6	TEFT		
		FORMARD SIGHT DI	STANCE	AT STOP	L TNE	1000 P	EET		
			LANE	CHANGE	DATA				
	P	ARAMETERS		ENG. 15	VALUE	THIC		11NTT5	
EURATION OF LANE CH FFAN DRIVER REACTION TIME REQUIRED FOR S DECELERATION AT BEC DIFFERENCE IN VEHICO BETWEEN ITS POSI ORSTRUCTION AND	ANGE WANEUVER S TIME UCCFSSIVE LANE INVING OF LANE LE'S DECFLERATI TIOS WHEN IT BE THE POSITION OF	CHANGES CHANGE MANEUVER ON OVER THE DIST GINS TO RESPOND THE OBSTRUCTION	ANCE TO AN	3 10 20* 5	1	2	ម ក ភា	ECOMDS ENTHS OF A ENTHS OF A EFT [NETERS	SECOND SECOND } / SECOND'*2
FOR NANDATO	RY LANE CHANGE: TONARY LANE CHA	NGE		10 5	1	32	FI FI	FET INCTERS EFT INCTERS] / SECOND**2] / SECOND**2
PANIC DECELERATION COMPUTATION OF CAR-	RATE OF LEAD VE FOLLOWING LAW	HICLE POR		10	/	3	5	EST (METERS] / SECOND**2
PANIC DECELERATION COMPUTATION OF CAR-	RATE OF FOLLOWE FOLLOWING LAW	R VEHICLE FOR		15	/	\$	n	EET [NFTERS] / SECOND""2
DRIVER TYPE FACTOR	USED TO COMPUTE	DRIVER AGGRESSI	VENESS	25					
LIRGENCY THRESHOLD				2	/	1	1	0 * SECONDS	**? / FEET [WETERS]
SAFETY FACTOR FOR C	ONPUTATION OF P	ERCEIVED RISK OF	LANE	в			F.	ACTOR * 10	
PERCENT OF DRIVERS	WHO COOPERATE &	ITH & LANE CHANG	ER.	50			`		
NEADRAY BELOW WHICH LAMES	ALL DRIVERS WI	LL ATTEMPT TO CH	ANCE	20			т	ENTHS OF A	SECONO
HEADWAY ABOVE WHICH	NO DRIVERS WIL	L АТТЕМРТ ТО СНА	NCE	50			T	ENTHS OF A	SECOND
FORMARD DISTANCE SC BUS STATION IN ORDE	ANNED BY ORIVER R TO ASSESS NEE	FOR A TURY MOVE D FOR A LAVE CHA	NEST / NGR	300	/	91	r	EET / {MFT0	(RS]

HAKIMUM ACCELERATION TABLE

PERFORMANCE INDER	O TT/SEC	10 TT/SEC	20 FT/SEC	NO FT/SEC	40 FT/SEC	SC FT/SEC	60 FT/SEC	70 FT/SEC	40 FT/SEC	90 FT/SEC	100 FT/SEC	110 FT/SEC
1	8.00	9.00	6.00	5.00	5 00	5.00	4.00	3.00	2.00	2.00	1.00	1,00
2	6.00	12.00	19.00	8.00	7.00	6.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	20	2.00
Ĵ	4.69	5.35	4.94	3.42	3.09	2.61	2.14	1.70	1.27	0.86	0.40	0.96
4	2.81	2.42	2.15	2.04	1.74	1.42	1.12	0.83	0.56	0.30	0.04	-0.23
4	2.76	2.37	1.61	1 56	1 25	0.97	0.73	0.52	0.32	0.14	-0.0.	0.23
6	2.45	2.14	1.42	1.12	0.85	0.03	0.44	0,29	D.14	0.00	0.14	-0.27
2	7.47	5.33	3.17	2.66	2.29	1.65	1.40	0.95	0.75	0.50	0.35	-0.35

GRADE CORRECTION FACTORS FOR ACCELERATION (USED BY FRESTH ONLY)

PERFORMANCE INDEX	TT/SEC	T/SEC	20 F7/SFC	NO FT/SEC	40 FT/SEC	SO FT/SEC	60 FT/SEC	70 FT/SEC	80 FT/SEC	90 FT/SEC	FT/SFC	110 FT/SEC
	1.1.1.1						r *	** ***				
1	0.31 0.31	0.31	0.31	0.31	0.31	0.31	0.11	0.31 0.31	0.31	0.31	$0.31 \\ 0.31$	0.31
1	0.21	0.21	0 21	9.26	0.23	0.25	0.26	0.27	0,28	D,28	0,30	0.31
4	U. 16	0.15	0.19	0 12	0.24	0.25	0.27	0.26	0,29	0.31	0.01	0.31
5 6 7	0.18 0.18 0.27	0.17 0.18 0.27	9.20 0.22 0.27	0.13 0.15 9.27	0.25 0.27 0.27	0.27 0.29 0.29	0.20 0.29	0.30 0.30 0.30	0.31 0.31 0.30	0.31 0.31 0.30	0.31 0.31 0.30	0.31 0.31 0.30

GRADE CORRECTION FACTORS FOR FUEL CONSUMPTION (USED BY FRESTW ONLY)

PERFORMANCE INDEX	TT/SEC	10 TT/SEC	20 FT/SEC	RÔ FT/SEC	40 FT/SEC	SO FT/SEC	60 FT/SEC	20 FT/SEC	BO FT/SEC	90 FT/SEC	190 17/SEC	110 FT/SEC
1,3	0.31 0.31 0.26 0.11	0,31 0,31 0,26 0,11	0 11 0 31 0.26 0 20	9.31 0.31 0.28 0.27	0 31 0 51 0 29 0 28	0.31 0.30 0.29	0.31 0.51 0.30 0.30	0.31 0.31 0.30 0.30	0.31 0.31 0.30 0.30	D.31 0.31 0.30 0.30	0.31 0.30 0.30	0,31 0,31 0,30 0,30
6,	0,16 0,20 0,27	0.16 0.20 0.27	0.26 0.28 0.27	0 28 0,29 0,27	6 29 0.30 0.27	0.30 0.30 0.29	0.30	0.30	0.30 0.31 0.30	0.30 0.31 0.30	0.30 0.31 0.30	0.30 0.31 0.30

TTHE	VARYING	ENTRY	VOLUMES	

TTHE	VARYING	ENTRY	VOLUMES

1

	1144		MEGIN TOPE (WINUTES)	FLOW RATE (VEH/HOUR)			
	(\$001.	3,	c	857			
	(8001.	3)	7	857			
1					INITTAL IZATIO	N STATISTICS	
	TTOF	INTER	VAL SU	BNETWORK	PRIOR CONTENT	CURRENT CONTENT	

		INITTALIZATION S	TATISTICS		
TIME INTERVAL NUMBER	SUBNETWORK TYPE	PRIOR CONTENT (VEHICLES)	CURRENT CONTENT (VENICLES)	PERCENT DIFFERENCE	
1 3 4	NETSIN NETSIN NETSIN NETSIN	0 15 9 16	15 9 16 34	10000 40 77 12	EQUILIBRIUN ATTAINED

ALL EXISTING SUBMETWORKS REACHED FOULLIBRIUM CUMULATIVE NETSIN STATISTICS AT TIME IS: 2: 0

	FL APS	HD TIME IS 0;	13: 0 C 900 SF	CONDS), TIM	PERIOD	1 ELAPSED TE	IF IS 900 SI	ECONDS		
L25K	VENICLE NILES TRIPS	VENICLE NI HOVE DELAY TINE TINE	TOTAL HOVE/	HINGTES/HILE TOTAL DELA TIME TIM	TOTAL	DELAY CONDS / DELAY CONT TIME DEL	WENTCHE	STOP' STOPS W TINE (%) V	E VALUES DL SPEED PH MPH	
(1, 6) (2, 3) (1, 4) (1, 2) (4, 1) (5, 1) (5, 1) (2004, 4) (2004, 4) (2003, 5) OSUBRETUGRE	0.00 0 0.00 0 35.24 187 1.60 21 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 19.93 210 39.20 207 19.93 20 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.	C D D.D G O O.D TC 5 12:5 3 2 D.4 G U D.O G U D.O 0 0 C.O 0 0 C.O 0 0 0.0 19 9 B.3 78 4 3.3 3.70 0.41 VFHICLE	0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 82.9 0.84 3.6 0.88 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 0.0 0.00 48.1 0.83 81.7 0.96 .1.61 0.89 sources	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.15 0.3 2.27 0.2 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2.42 0.4 2.56 0.24 2.25 0.24	0 0.0 0 0.0 0.	0.0 0 0.0 0 1.7 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 7.3 0 0.9 0 0.9 0 0.11 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0 0.0 0.3 0.0	0.0 0 0.0 0 7 0.0 0 6 0.0 0 6 0.0 0 6 0.0 0 0 0.1 4 84 0.3 4 84 0.3 4 85 0.00 9 PEQ TRIP	D 0.0 D 0.0 2555 4 26.4 C 0.0 C 0.0 D 24.8 5 28.8 5 C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	
1	EL APS	IN TIME IS 0:1	CUMALATIVE NF	TEIN STATISTICS CONDS), TIN	AT TEMP	15: 2: 0 1 RIAPSED TIN	IF IS YUQ SE	(COND)		
CIPE.	VEN-MINS " QUEUE STOM TIME TIME	AVERAGE OCCUPANCY (VENTCLE)	CONGESTION STORAGE PHASE (N) FAILURE	AVI 1 2 0	INGE QUEU		нстн (у 9 1 2	MAXTHUM QUEVE I	BY LANF 6 7 8 5	NUMBER OF LANE 9 CHANGES
(1, 6) (2, 3) (1, 4) (1, 5) (1, 5) (1, 2) (4, 1) (6, 1) (5, 1) (5, 1) (2, 2) (5) OSUBRETWORK-	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.1 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	0 0 0 0 0 4 0	0.0 0 11.3 0 1.9 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.0 0 0.1 0 0.0 0 0	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0				0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

* THESE VALUES INCLUDE THE TIME FOR VEHICLES CURRENTLY ON THE LINK.
** AVERAGE QUEUE CALCHARED BASED ON THE SINCE BEGINTING OF SIMULATION

1							CURU	LATIV	NETSIN	STATE	STECS A	T TIME	15: 2:	0						
				FL A	PSEC TIM	e is	0:15: 0	(9	00 SECON	×).	TIME	PERIOD	1 ELA	PSED T	THE IS	900 1	ECONDS			
									DISCHAR	E BY	LANE									
	1.74	ι	LANE VFH	1 VPH	L ANE VEH	2 VPH	VEH	3 VPH	VEH	4 VPH	L ANE VEH	S VPH	VEH	6 V7H	LANE VEH	7 УРН	VEH	8 УРН	LANE VEH	9 VPH
	1, 2, 1, 1, 4, 6, 2, 2, 3,	6) 4) 4) 1) 1) 1) 1) 1) 1) 1)	0 187 21 0 0 0 210 210 207	0 748 84 0 0 840 840 828	6000000000	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	00000000000000000000000000000000000000	000000000000	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	000000000000	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	00000000000	000000000000		00000000000	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	00000000000	******	000000000000
1								NET	SIN PERS	Jh MEA	SURES O	-	CTIVENE	\$\$						
					LINK		PER MI	SON L E		PE	RSON		D PFR	FL AY SON-NI	N	T9U PE	VEL TIN	e N		
					1, 6) 2, 3) 1, 6) 1, 5 1, 2) 6, 1) 5, 1) 2, 1) 3, 2)		0 45 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0.081.000.99		2	0.0 0.0 43.1 27.3 0.0 0.8 9.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0			0.9 0.9 16.2 0.6 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0			0,0 0,0 107,8 4,2 0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0 62,6 106,2			

1 *** NOTE *** TIME PERIOD I SPECIFIC NETSIN STATISTICS ARE THE SAME AS CUMULATIVE OUTPUT AT THE END OF TIME PERIOD 1.

NETSIN MOVEMENT SPECIFIC STATISTICS - TABLE I

LINK	VENICLE-MILE LEFT THRU RIGHT	VENTCLE-TRIPS	SPEED (WPN) LEFT THRU RIGHT	STOPS (PCT) LEFT THRU RIGHT
(1, 6) (1, 3) (1, 5) (1, 5) (4, 2) (4, 2) (4, 2) (4, 3) (5, 1) (2, 3) (8004, 4) (8004, 6) (8004, 5)	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.224 0.00 0.00 1.224 0.00 0.00 1.240 0.00 0.00 1.240 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1.293 1.99 0.00 1.9.20 0.00	0 0 0 0 0 147 0 0 0 147 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 149 21 0 0 207 0 0 0 2006 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 0.0 0.0 0.3 3.5 0.0 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.5 0.0 0.0 2.6 4 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.2 2.1 0.0 28.8 0.0	0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
1		NETSIN MOVEMENT SPECIFIC STAT	TISTICS - TABLE II	
LINK	MOVING TIMF (VEN-MINS) LEFT THRU RIGHT	DELAY TIME (VEH-MINS) LEFT THAU RIGHT	TOTAL TINE (VEH-MINS) LEFT THRU RIGHT	RATIO NOVE/TOTAL (VEN.WINS) LEFT THRU RIGHT
$ \begin{pmatrix} 1, & 6 \\ 2, & 3 \\ 1, & 4 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 5 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 1 \\ 1, & 2 \\ 1, & 1 $	$\begin{array}{cccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccccc$	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 12.47 0.00 0.00 0.044 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.044 0.00 0.00 0.00	0 0.23 0 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0.00 8.1 6.8 0.00	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 0.00
1		NETSIN NOVENENT SPECIFIC STAT	TISTICS TABLE III	
LINK { 1.	TOTAL TIME (SPCS/VEH) LEFT THRU 0.0 0.0	DELAY TIME (SECS/VEN) LEFT TWRU RICHT 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.2 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0	QueLe TIME** (VE+ wINS) LEFT TMAL RIGHT 9.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0.0 0.0 0 0.0	STOP TIMU RIGHT (VEN-MINS) LEFT TIMU RIGHT 0.0

** TIME FOR VEHICLES CURRENTLY ON THE LINK ARE INCLUDED IN THESE VALUES.

NETSIN MOVEMENT SPECIFIC STATISTICS - TABLE IV

				TOTAL CON	TROL DELA	14	A	ERAGE CO	NTROL DEL H)	AY.
	LINK		LEFT	THRU	RIGHT	DIAGONAL	LEFT	THRU	RIGHT	DIAGONAL
(1.	ь)	0 0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
i	2	- 31	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
1	- i.	- 41 -	0.0	0.0	0,0	0.0	õ.õ	Õ,Õ	0.0	ā.ŏ
(1.	- 55	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
ť	1.	- 2)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
ť	- 4C -	- 11	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
- ĉ	6	1)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
- i	- <u>s</u> .	1)	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
Ē	3;	8	0 0	0.4	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.1	0.0	0 0

NETSIN MOVEMENT SPECIFIC STATISTICS - TABLE Y

HOES FOR DEAGONAL TURN HOVENENTS

	LINK		VEH WILF	VEH-TRIPS	SPEED (MPN)	STOPS (PCT)	MOVING TIME (VEH-MINS)	DELAY TIME (VEH-MINS)	TOTAL TINE (VEH HINS)	н/т	TOTAL TIME (SECS/VEH)	DELAY TIME (SECS/VEH)	QUEUE TIME (VEH-MINS)	STOP TINE
MINS)														
(1.	6)	0.00	0	0.9	D.0	0.00	0,00	0.00	0.00	Q.D	0.0	0.0	0.0
	2.	33	0,00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
(1,	4)	0,00	0	0.0	0,0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
((1.	53	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
	1.	- 25	0.00	0	0.0	0,0	0,00	0,00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
é	4.	1)	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0 00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
(6.	1)	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
- 7	5	- 1) -	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0,00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
(2,	1)	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	00 3	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
ć	3.	- 23	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
- Či	1001	- 35	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
ň	1004	41	0.00	0	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0 00	0.00	0.0	0.0	0.0	0.0
ĥ	1002	- 61	0.00	Ó	0.0	0.0	0.00	0.00	0.00	0 00	ññ	0.0	0.0	0.0
- iii	1003	ší	0.00	ō	0.0	ŏ.ŏ	0.00	0.00	õ õõ	0.00	ě ě	0.0	0.0	D.0
1		.,						2.30				2.0		0.5

NETSIM CUMULATIVE SURVEILLANCE DETECTOR OUTPUT AT 15: 2: 0 (900 SECONDS)

DE	TECTOR		APPRO	асн	co.	ERED	DISTANCE OF TRATLING EDGE	ne të citne	LENCEN		NULATIVE	OCCUPANCY ??	AVERAGE
ID	TYPE		LIN	ĸ	A	8	FEET / WETERS	FEET / I	PETERS	COUNT	(SEC)	(%)	(HPH)
241	PRESENCE	C	1,	4)	9	- 0	895.0 / 272.8	2.0 /	0.6	189	91.2	10.1	26.2
213	PRESENCE	- (2,	- 1)	9	- 0	300.0 / 91.4	2.0 /	0.6	209	97.2	10.8	26.6
212	PRESENCE	(2.	1)	9	- Q	200.0 / 61.0	2.0 /	9.6	209	101.8	11.3	26.1
211	PRESENCE	- (2.	- 1)	- 9	- 0	0.0 / 0.0	2.07	0.6	210	109.2	12.1	23.1
322	PRESENCE	- Ć	3.	2)	9	- 0	100.9 / 30.5	2.0 /	0.6	207	98.3	10.9	26.5
321	PRESENCE	1	3,	- 2)	9	- 0	0.0 / 0.0	2.07	0.6	207	95.5	10.6	25.3

** OCCUPANCY IS CALCULATED AS (CUMULATIVE ON-TIME) / (TIME SINCE BEGINNING OF SIMULATION)

THE NIGHEST NUMBER OF VEHICLES ON THE VETWORK WAS 22 VEHICLES. THIS MAXIMUM OCCURRED AT 131 SECONDS.

METWORK-WIDE AVERAGE STATISTICS

TOTAL VEHICLE- NTLE - 95.97 VEHICLE-MOUND OF THE - 3.62 AVERAGE SPEED (MPH)- 26.61 MOVE TOTAL - 0.89 MINUTES/NILE OF: DELAY TIME - 0.41, TOTAL TIME - 3.62 MINUTES/NILE OF: DELAY TIME - 0.25, TOTAL TIME - 2.25 95.97, 1.20, 0.41, 3.61, 26.61, 0.89, 0.25, 2.25 TOTAL CRU TIME FOR SUMLATION - 1.12 SECONDS ULAST CASE PROCESSED

APPENDIX C. SIMULATION RESULTS



Figure C.1. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 300 feet).



Figure C.2. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 300 feet).



Figure C.3. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Shared Treatment.



Figure C.4. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 150 feet).



Figure C.5. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 300 feet).



Figure C.6. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 480 feet).



Figure C.7. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed and Exclusive Treatment (Pocket Length of 600 feet).



Figure C.8. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 200 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.9. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 30 mph Posted Speed, 300 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.10. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 200 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.11. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 55 mph Posted Speed, 300 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.12. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 100 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.13. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 200 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.14. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 300 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.15. Spot Speed Profiles of Through Vehicles at Different Detectors for 45 mph Posted Speed, 400 vph, and Different Pocket Lengths.



Figure C.16. Total Delay (in Vehicle Minutes) of Through Vehicles on Approach Link for 45 mph Posted Speed.



Figure C.17. Average Delay (in Seconds/Vehicle) of Through Vehicle on Approach Link for 45 mph Posted Speed.

APPENDIX D. MINITAB OUTPUTS

MODEL 1-- Field Data Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model Regression Analysis: SMS-TH versus SPEED, VOL, ...

The regression equation is SMS-TH = 3.38 + 0.872 SPEED + 0.0346 VOL - 6.18 RT% + 0.00759 POC - 0.000167 POC*VOL + 0.0645 RT%*POC

Predictor	Coef	SE Coef	Т	Р
Constant	3.376	2.616	1.29	0.201
SPEED	0.87176	0.06865	12.70	0.000
VOL	0.03462	0.02469	1.40	0.165
RT%	-6.183	5.916	-1.05	0.299
POC	0.007591	0.006747	1.13	0.264
POC *VOL	-0.00016682	0.00006183	-2.70	0.009
RT%*POC	0.06454	0.02463	2.62	0.011

S = 4.66709 R-Sq = 84.1% R-Sq(adj) = 82.8%

PRESS = 1993.89 R-Sq(pred) = 80.84%

Source	DF	SS	MS	F	Р
Regression	6	8751.6	1458.6	66.96	0.000
Residual Error	76	1655.4	21.8		
Total	82	10407.1			

Source	DF	Seq SS
SPEED	1	8313.8
VOL	1	27.4
RT%	1	27.0
POC	1	15.5
POC*VOL	1	218.4
RT%*POC	1	149.6

MODEL 2-- Field Data Based Total Delay Statistical Model Regression Analysis: TOTAL DELAY (VEH-MINS) versus SPEED, VOL, ...

The regression equation	is
TOTAL DELAY (VEH-MINS)	= 1.26 - 0.0292 SPEED + 0.0113 VOL + 0.0163 RT
	- 0.00712 POC - 0.000414 RT*VOL
	+ 0.000023 POC*VOL + 0.000143 POC*SPEED

Predictor	Coef	SE Coef	Т	Р
Constant	1.2555	0.3586	3.50	0.001
SPEED	-0.029184	0.009287	-3.14	0.002
VOL	0.011338	0.002941	3.86	0.000
RT	0.01635	0.02350	0.70	0.489
POC	-0.007116	0.003673	-1.94	0.056
RT*VOL	-0.0004142	0.0001517	-2.73	0.008
POC*VOL	0.00002251	0.00001099	2.05	0.044
POC*SPEED	0.00014267	0.00006968	2.05	0.044

S = 0.607431 R-Sq = 57.3% R-Sq(adj) = 53.3%

PRESS = 34.1197 R-Sq(pred) = 47.29%

Source	DF	SS	MS	F	P
Regression	7	37.0602	5.2943	14.35	0.000
Residual Error	75	27.6730	0.3690		
Total	82	64.7331			

Source	DF	Seq SS
SPEED	1	2.9990
VOL	1	22.2124
RT	1	0.7224
POC	1	4.8828
RT*VOL	1	2.3860
POC*VOL	1	2.3107
POC*SPEED	1	1.5469

MODEL 3-- Field Data Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model

Regression Analysis: VEHICLE DELAY versus SPEED, VOL, ...

The regression equation is VEHICLE DELAY = 3.17 - 0.0646 SPEED + 0.00662 VOL - 7.73 RT% - 0.0122 POC - 0.0583 RT%*VOL + 0.241 RT%*SPEED + 0.000258 POC*SPEED 81 cases used, 1 cases contain missing values Predictor Coef SE Coef Т Ρ 3.1735 0.4144 7.66 0.000 Constant 0.01115 -5.79 0.000 SPEED -0.06463 0.006622 2.49 0.015 0.002664 VOL RT४ -7.735 2.230 -3.47 0.001 -0.012190 0.003353 -3.64 0.001 POC 0.01709 -3.41 0.001 RT%*VOL -0.05830 0.24074 0.05561 4.33 0.000 RT%*SPEED 0.00025765 0.00006235 4.13 0.000 POC*SPEED S = 0.558960 R-Sq = 38.6% R-Sq(adj) = 32.7% PRESS = 28.1337 R-Sq(pred) = 24.22% Analysis of Variance Source DF SS MS F Ρ 00

Regression	7	14.3157	2.0451	6.55	0.00
Residual Error	73	22.8079	0.3124		
Total	80	37.1236			

Source	DF	Seq SS
SPEED	1	1.1751
VOL	1	0.0261
RT%	1	0.0593
POC	1	0.8985
RT%*VOL	1	0.6418
RT%*SPEED	1	6.1802
POC*SPEED	1	5.3348

MODEL 4 – Simulation Based Space Mean Speed Statistical Model Regression Analysis: SMS-TH versus VOL,RT%, ...

The regression equation is SMS-TH = - 0.989 - 0.110 VOL - 0.0280 RT% + 0.999 SPEED + 0.000685 POC + 0.000083 RT%*POC

Coef	SE Coef	т	P
-0.9892	0.1955	-5.06	0.000
-0.109986	0.004908	-22.41	0.000
-0.02797	0.01134	-2.47	0.014
0.998905	0.003330	299.95	0.000
0.0006853	0.0002800	2.45	0.015
0.00008324	0.00003011	2.76	0.006
	Coef -0.9892 -0.109986 -0.02797 0.998905 0.0006853 0.00008324	CoefSE Coef-0.98920.1955-0.1099860.004908-0.027970.011340.9989050.0033300.00068530.00028000.000083240.00003011	CoefSE CoefT-0.98920.1955-5.06-0.1099860.004908-22.41-0.027970.01134-2.470.9989050.003330299.950.00068530.00028002.450.000083240.000030112.76

S = 0.527015 R-Sq = 99.7% R-Sq(adj) = 99.7%

PRESS = 68.5252 R-Sq(pred) = 99.73%

Source	DF	SS	MS	F	Р
Regression	5	25236.8	5047.4	18172.63	0.000
Residual Error	232	64.4	0.3		
Total	237	25301.2			

Source	DF	Seq SS
VOL	1	189.7
RT%	1	2.3
SPEED	1	25023.2
POC	1	19.4
RT%*POC	1	2.1

MODEL 5 -- Simulation Based Total Delay Statistical Model

Regression Analysis: TD versus VOL, RT, ...

The regression equation is TD = 0.975 + 0.0947 VOL + 0.546 RT - 0.0302 SPEED - 0.000031 POC + 0.0123 RT*VOL - 0.0160 RT*SPEED - 0.000424 RT*POC

Predictor	Coef	SE Coef	Т	Р
Constant	0.9754	0.2023	4.82	0.000
VOL	0.094676	0.005953	15.90	0.000
ŔŢ	0.5459	0.1505	3.63	0.000
SPEED	-0.030194	0.003958	-7.63	0.000
POC	-0.0000310	0.0001869	-0.17	0.869
RT*VOL	0.012269	0.004695	2.61	0.010
RT*SPEED	-0.016016	0.002436	-6.57	0.000
RT*POC	-0.0004242	0.0001153	-3.68	0.000

S = 0.403423 R-Sq = 83.7% R-Sq(adj) = 83.2%

PRESS = 40.1745 R-Sq(pred) = 82.38%

Source	DF	SS	MS	F	Р
Regression	7	190.867	27.267	167.54	0.000
Residual Error	228	37.107	0.163		
Total	235	227.974			

DF	Seq SS
1	115.971
1	0.010
1	61.266
1	3.297
1	1.053
1	7.066
1	2.203
	DF 1 1 1 1 1 1

MODEL 6 -- Simulation Based Vehicle Delay Statistical Model Regression Analysis: VD versus VOL, RT, ...

The regression equation is VD = 1.87 + 0.0469 VOL + 0.463 RT - 0.0364 SPEED - 0.000083 POC - 0.000287 RT*POC - 0.00860 RT*SPEED

Predictor	Coef	SE Coef	Т	Р
Constant	1.8690	0.1112	16.80	0.000
VOL	0.046851	0.002577	18.18	0.000
RT	0.46261	0.06764	6.84	0.000
SPEED	-0.036447	0.002299	-15.86	0.000
POC	-0.0000831	0.0001093	-0.76	0.447
RT*POC	-0.00028697	0.00007010	-4.09	0.000
RT*SPEED	-0.008603	0.001460	-5.89	0.000

S = 0.238720 R-Sq = 86.8% R-Sq(adj) = 86.5%

PRESS = 14.0907 R-Sq(pred) = 85.89%

Source	DF	SS	MS	F	P
Regression	6	86.719	14.453	253.62	0.000
Residual Error	231	13.164	0.057		
Total	237	99.883			

Source	DF	Seq SS
VOL	1	26.284
RT	1	0.011
SPEED	1	55.263
POC	1	2.066
RT*POC	1	1.117
RT*SPEED	1	1.977